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SAUDI CABLE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

31. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

32.

33.

¢) Credit risk (continued)

The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowance for doubtful receivables,
estimated by the Group’s management based on prior experience and their assessment of the
current economic environment.

d) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to change in
foreign exchange rates. Except for operations of foreign subsidiaries, the Group did not
undertake significant transactions in currencies other than Saudi Riyals and US Dollars,
during the year.

e) Commodity price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk uses commodity based derivative instruments
to manage, some of the risks arising from fluctuations in commodity prices. Where these
derivatives have been designated as cash flow hedges of underlying commodity price
expenses, certain gains and losses attributable to these instruments are deferred in
shareholders’ equity and recognised in the consolidated statement of operations when the
underlying hedged transaction crystalizes or is no longer expected to occur.

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in metal pricing.
The Group enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to metal
pricing.

FAIR VALUES

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Management believes that the fair
values of the Company's financial assets and liabilities, except for the investments in equity
accounted investees, are not materially different from their carrying values.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMNETS

These consolidated financial statements were approved for issuance by the Board of Directors on
Jumada Al Awal 16, 1437H corresponding to February 25, 2016.
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SAUDI CABLE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

31. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

a)

b)

<)

Commission rate risk

Commission rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the
value of the financial instruments. The Group is exposed to commission rate risk mainly on
the amounts due to banks. The Group monitors the fluctuation, where applicable, in the
interest rates and also entered into an interest rate Swap with a commercial to hedge future
adverse fluctuation in interest rates on its long term borrowing. All the borrowings of the
Company are on floating commission rate

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its net funding requirements.
This risk is managed by the Group’s treasury department by monitoring the maturity profile
of the Group and affiliates’ financial assets and liabilities to ensure that adequate liquidity is
maintained. The Group’s financial liabilities primarily consist of short term and long term
loans, accounts payable, finance lease obligations, other liabilities and due to related parties.
This assists the Group in monitoring the cash flow requirements to ensure that it has sufficient
liquidity. The Group also monitors the levels of expected cash inflows on trade and other
receivables together with the expected cash outflows on trade payables and bank borrowings,
including finance costs. The management expects net cash outflow of SR 37 million and SR
315 million, towards bank borrowings, during the years ending December 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2017 respectively.

As at December 31, 2015, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by SR
706.18 million (December 31, 2014: SR 845.08 million). However subsequent to the year
end, on February 23, 2016, the restructuring agreements were signed by the Group and its
four main lenders that allows the Group to reschedule and repay its debts amounting to SR
793 million including the financial charges payable over a period of 7 years culminating with
a final payment at the end of December 2022. The detailed repayments as per the terms of the
debt restructuring agreements are disclosed in note 14.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

Credit risk arises from the possibility that assets could be impaired because counter parties
cannot meet their obligations in transactions involving financial instruments. The Group has
established procedures to manage credit exposure including credit approvals, credit limits and
guarantee requirements. An allowance for potential doubtful receivables is maintained at a
level which, in the judgment of management, is adequate to provide for potential losses on
delinquent receivables.

Annual Report 2015



SAUDI CABLE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

29. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Geographic Information:

The Group's operations are conducted in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, UAE and Turkey. Selected
financial information summarised by geographic area, is as follows:

Saudi Arabia UAE Turke Total
2015
Revenue 1,329,427 80,843 507,789 1,918,059
Costs of revenue 1,308,733 76,616 464,305 1,849,654
Net profit / (loss) 25,040 364 (23,717) 1,687
Trade receivable 336,826 34,546 150,042 521,414
Property, plant and equipment 329,725 24 351,829 681,578
Short-term loans 602,093 - 140,029 742,122
Long-term loans 290,169 - 60,512 350,681

Saudi Arabia UAE Turkey Total
2014
Revenue 1,129,271 45,716 541,334 1,716,321
Costs of revenue 1,137,021 42,557 530,080 1,709,658
Net loss (124,087) (708) (76,884) (201,679)
Trade receivable 288,475 5,642 62,948 357,065
Property, plant and equipment 376,221 118 370,863 747,202
Short-term loans 646,006 -- 196,336 842,342
Long-term loans 302,769 - 62,121 364,890

30. OPERATING LEASES

Rent expense for the year ended December 31, 2015 amounted to SR 6.375 million (December 31,
2014: SR 5.10 million).

31. RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group has exposure to the following risks:

- Interest rate risk

- Liquidity risk

- Credit risk

- Currency risk

- Commodity price risk

This note represents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing such risks.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Group's risk management framework. Senior management are responsible for developing and
monitoring the Group's risk management policies and report regularly to the Board of Directors on
their activities.
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SAUDI CABLE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

28. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In addition to contingencies mentioned in note 17 following are the additional commitments and
contingent liabilities of the Group

015 014
Outstanding forward metal contracts 103,278 411,840
Contingent liabilities in respect of performance and bid
bonds 128,799 182,394
Authorised and contracted for capital expenditure
commitments 8,833 9,774
Corporate guarantees issued 61,196 79,217

In addition to providing guarantees in respect of bank facilities available to certain subsidiaries,
the Company has also provided undertakings to support such subsidiaries in meeting their
liabilities as they fall due.

29. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
Operating Segment:

The Group has the following main business segments:

e  Sale of manufactured goods
e  Turnkey power and telecommunication projects (based on the contracts)

These form the basis of internal management reporting of main business segments

Sale of goods Contract revenue Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 _2014

Revenue 1,827,034 1,563,179 91,025 153,142 1,918,059 1,716,321
Costs of revenue 1,766,995 1,567,793 82,659 141,865 1,849,654 1,709,658
Net (loss) / profit (5,254)  (183,990) 6,941 (17,689) 1,687 (201,679)
Trade receivable 381,738 244,901 139,676 112,164 521,414 357,065
Property, plant and 676.635

equipment ’ 740,296 4,943 6,906 681,578 747,202
Short-term loans 669,375 769,595 72,747 72,747 742,122 842,342
Long-term loans 255,217 269,426 95,464 95,464 350,681 364,890
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SAUDI CABLE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

27. RELATED PARTIES (continued)

2. Due to related parties

Transaction
during the year
ended
Transaction with Relationship  Nature of transaction December 31, Closing balance

2015 2014 2015 2014

Midal Cables W.L.LL.  Associate Purchase of raw
material 27,276 7,025
Director remuneration 1,875 1,875
Dividend received 76,875 87,167
Other 4,736 2,019 22,237 2,687
Xenel Industries Shareholder Expenses recharged by
Limited the Group 2,377 2,866 38,596 36,219
Chem Global Limited Affiliate - -- 664 664
Expenses incurred by
Hidada Limited Affiliate the Group - 993 1,452 1,452
Xeca International Associate
Information Expenses incurred by
Technology the Group - 6,742 - 549

62,949 41,571

3. Remuneration of Directors and Key Management Personnel

201

[9]]
[\
(=}
—
S

Directors Remuneration 45 72

The remuneration of management during the year was as follows:

(]
(=]
o
9]
[\
(e
—_
o

Short term benefits 8,365 7,354

Post employment benefit 312 256

Short term benefits include the monthly gross salary paid to the key management personnel
which include basic salary and the allowances.

Post employment benefits include the current service cost for the employees’ end of service
benefit
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SAUDI CABLE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

26. EARNINGS /LOSS PER SHARE

Earnings / loss per share for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 have been computed by
dividing the net profit / (loss) and loss from operations for such years by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding at the end of the year. Diluted earnings per share is also same as
basic earnings per share.

27. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

a)  Related parties include the Company’s shareholders and their relatives upto the fourth
generation, associated and affiliated companies (including equity accounted investees) and
key management personnel of the Company. Terms and conditions of these transactions are
approved by the Company’s management.

b) Related party transactions mainly represent purchase and sale of finished goods and
recharging of expenses from / to affiliates. These are undertaken at mutually agreed terms

and are approved by the Company's Board of Directors

c)  Significant related party transactions and balances arising there from as at December 31 are
summarised as under:

1. Due from related parties

Transaction during

the year ended
Transaction with Relationship  Nature of transaction December 31, Closing balance
2015 2014 2015 2014
Hidada Limited Affiliate Sale of goods 1,207 -- 483 --
Xeca International Associate
Information
Technology Shared services 4,105 -- 378 --
861 --
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SAUDI CABLE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

23. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses comprises of the following:

2015 2014
Salaries and related benefits 24,799 29,321
Freight, Insurance and Transportation 22,872 42,750
Repair and maintenance 1,263 1,386
Professional charges 1,335 1,962
Depreciation (Note 12) 356 369
Rent 1,835 2,188
Utilities 460 548
Printing and stationery 519 351
Other 2,420 5,183
55,859 84,058
24. FINANCIAL CHARGES - NET
During the year ended December 31, 2015, an amount of SR 62 million (December 31, 2014: Nil)
has been reversed that had been accrued in the current and prior periods. The financial charges
reversal relates to the borrowings obtained under Islamic principles, that is formally agreed as part
of restructuring agreement signed on February 23, 2016. (Note 14).
The movement of accrued financial charges is as follows:
2015 201
Balance at January 1 76,742 16,317
Charge for the year 84,123 112,039
Reversal made during the year (62,390) --
21,733 112,039
Payments made during the year (42,835) (51,614)
Balance at December 31 55,640 76,742
25. OTHER INCOME - NET
Other income comprises of the following:
2015 2014
Reversal of provision for doubtful receivables (Note 6.3) 40,130 --
Impairment of goodwill -- (12,342)
Foreign exchange gain 8,127 (473)
Others 6,521 21,498
54,778 8,083
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

20. STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with Regulations for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the Company has
to establish a statutory reserve by appropriation of 10% of net income until the reserve equaled
50% of the share capital. This reserve is not available for dividend distribution. As the Company
have accumulated losses, therefore, no amount has been transferred to statutory reserve during the
current year.

21. CUMULATIVE CHANGES IN FAIR VALUES

Movement in cumulative changes in fair values is as follows as of December 31:

2015 2014

Balance at January 1 (20,123) 23,087
Net movement in realised/unrealised (losses)/gains on

available-for-sale investments 24 (902)
Net movement in unrealised (losses)/gains relating to cash

flow Hedges of the Company and equity accounted

investee 6,405 (42,308)
Balance at December 31 (13,694) (20,123)

22. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
General and administrative expenses comprises of the following:
2015 2014
Salaries and related benefits 40,731 48,965
Professional charges 14,100 18,057
Depreciation (Note 11 and 12) 14,845 12,543
Amortisation (Note 13) 15,974 16,485
Bank charges 5,085 2,101
Repairs and maintenance 4,899 4,988
Traveling and transportation expenses 3,088 3,852
Provision for doubtful receivables (Note 6.2) - 3,970
Rent and insurance 2,650 2,347
Utilities 2,127 2,682
Trainings 2,046 1,900
Printing and Stationery 1,129 737
Others 7,946 5,463
114,620 124,090
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SAUDI CABLE COMPANY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

17. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX (continued)
Mass Centers for Distribution of Electrical Products Limited

The DZIT issued the Zakat assessments for the years from 1998 to 2007, which showed Zakat
liability of Saudi Riyals 1 million. The Company filed an appeal with the Higher Appeal
Committee (HAC) against the said assessments and is confident of favorable outcome.

The Company filed its Zakat returns for the years ended December 31, 2008 to 2010. The DZIT
did not issue the final Zakat assessments for the said years till to date. Although, the Company is
essentially dormant but is in the process to file the Zakat returns for the years from 2011 to 2015.

Mass Projects for Power & Telecommunications Limited

The Company filed its Zakat returns for the years from 1999 to 2014, The DZIT issue its final
Zakat Assessments for the years 1999 to 2004 and claimed additional Zakat differences of Saudi
Riyals 3 million. The Company filed an objection against the DZIT assessment, which is still
under review by DZIT. Final assessments for the years 2005 to 2014 were not issued by the DZIT
till to date.

Saudi Cable Company for Marketing Limited

The DZIT issued the final assessment for the years 1996 to 2004, and claimed Zakat differences of
Saudi Riyals 17 million. The Company filed its objection against the said Zakat differences and is
confident of favorable outcome. The Company filed its Zakat returns for the years 2005 to 2007.
The DZIT did not issue the final Zakat assessment for the said years till to date. Although, the
Company is essentially dormant but is in the process to file the Zakat returns for the years up to
2014.

18. EMPLOYEES’ END OF SERVICE BENEFIT

The movement in employees’ end of service benefit liability is as follows:

2015 2014
January 1 67,937 58,658
Provision for the year 13,355 16,663
Paid during the year (11,848) (7,384)
December 31 69,444 67,937

19. SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital consists of 76,000,000 shares of Saudi Riyals 10 each as at December 31, 2015
and 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

17. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX (continued)

The movement in deferred tax asset during the year ended December 31 is as follows:

2015 2014
Balance at January 1 5,524 957
Net movement during the year 310 4,567
Balance at December 31 5,834 5,524

At December 31, 2015, deferred tax asset amounting to SR 5.83 million (2014: SR 5.5 million)

relates to a foreign subsidiary of the Group and the management believes that it is recoverable.

Status of assessments:

Saudi Cable Company

The Department of Zakat and Income Tax (DZIT) has assessed additional Zakat liability
amounting to Saudi Riyals 50.70 million on the Company for the years 1993 to 2004. The
Company objected against part of the additional liabilities, which is still under an appeal at various

levels between DZIT and Board of grievances (BOG).

DZIT issued the assessment for the years 2005 to 2007 and claimed additional zakat and
withholding tax liability of SR 35.69 million. The Company objected against the said assessment,
which was transferred to Preliminary Appeal Committee (PAC) for the review and decision. PAC
approved the DZIT point of view. Accordingly, the Company filed an appeal against PAC’s

decision with Higher Appeal Committee (HAC) which is under review by the HAC.

The DZIT has raised assessment for the years 2008 and 2009 with additional liability of 32.9
million. The company has filed an appeal against the DZIT’s assessment with the Preliminary

Appeal Committee (PAC).

The DZIT issued the assessment for the years from 2010 to 2012 and claimed additional Zakat
liability of SR 72.22 million. The Company objected against the said assessment, which is still

under review by the DZIT till to date.

The Company booked a provision of Saudi Riyals 79 million against current and above mentioned
assessment years by the DZIT. The Company filed its Zakat returns for the year 2013 and 2014

and has obtained the restricted Zakat certificates.
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SAUDI CABLE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

16. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (continued)

16.1 Accrued interest includes an amount of SR 35.11 million (2014: SR 34.80 million) payable for the
interest rate swap which matured on April 30, 2015 with a negative fair value of SR 35.11 million.
This payable is rescheduled as part of the restructuring agreement as disclosed in note 14.

16.2 The liability represents the payments to the shareholders of Elimsan Salt Cihazlari ye
Elektromekanik San ve Tic. A.S (“Elimsan Salt”) under an agreement of purchase of shares by Mass
Kablo. According to agreement, Mass Kablo is required to pay 90% of the net profit to the
shareholders of Elimsan Salt till the year ended December 2014. However, if there is no profit
during this period, Mass Kablo was liable to pay US$ 14.256 million in 2014 and thereafter US$ 5
million in each year ended 2015 and 2016. As at December 31, 2015 no such amount has been
paid by the Company to the shareholders of Elimsan Salt.

17. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX

a) Charge for the year

Zakat and income tax charge for the year ended December 31 comprises the following

201 2014
Zakat charge for the year 16,000 15,000
Deferred tax (2,100) (1,465)
Zakat and income tax charge for the year 13,900 13,535

Zakat computation for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 was based on the
financial statements of the parent Company and its subsidiaries.

Foreign subsidiaries are subject to income tax in accordance with the tax laws of the
countries of their incorporation. Provisions for income tax of foreign subsidiaries are

charged to the consolidated statement of income.

b) Accrued Zakat and income tax

The movement in accrued zakat during the year ended December 31 is as follows:

2015 2014
Balance at January 1 64,740 50,276
Add: Charge for the year 16,000 15,000
Less: Payments during the year (549) (536)
Balance at December 31 80,191 64,740
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(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

15. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE

Finance leases relate to manufacturing equipment leases with a term of 5 years or less. The Group
has options to purchase the equipment for a nominal amount at the end of the lease agreement. The
Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors' title to the leased assets.

2015 2014
Minimum lease payments 33,090 44,140
Less: financial charges not yet due 3,510) (5,325)
Present value of minimum lease payments 29,580 38,815
Less: current portion shown under current liabilities (9,454) (9,919)
Non - current portion shown under current liabilities 20,126 28,896

The leased assets have been acquired under finance lease arrangements for a total lease value of
SR 48.62 million, and remaining balance of SR 29.58 million payable in equal monthly
instalments effective from 2015.

The present value of minimum lease payments has been determined at an effective interest rate of
6% per annum. Future lease payments as at December 31, are as follows:

2015 2014
Obligation under finance lease 29,580 38,815
Within one year 9,454 9,919
Within two to five years 20,126 28,896

16. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities, at December 31, comprise the following

2015 2014

Accrued financial charges (Notes 24) 55,640 76,742
Advances from customers 99,080 115,888
Billing in excess of contract revenue 33,140 45,984
Negative fair value of derivatives (Note 16.1) 46,049 50,289
Accrued commission 13,346 16,728
Employee payable 10,741 23,003
Payable to shareholders of Elimsan (Note 16.2) 89,461 89,203
Other current liabilities 45,370 29,316

392,827 447,153
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14. BANK BORROWINGS AND FINANCIAL RESTRUCTURING (continued)

Subsequent to the year end, on February 23, 2016, the Group secured financial restructuring
agreements with its four main lenders which, requires the Company to comply with additional
covenants and allows the Company to reschedule repayment of its debts over a period of 7 years
culminating with a final payment at the end of December 2022 subject to certain additional
requirements. The total debt restructured is SR 793 million including accumulated financing costs
of SR 85 million. The said agreement mainly stipulates following conditions:

e  Total repayment of debt by 2022, beginning from June 30, 2016

e  Right issue of Company’s shares to take place before December 31, 2017

e  Maintaining financial covenants, throughout the financing period including leverage ratios,
minimum cash cover and minimum cash balance requirements.

e  Assignment of all the dividends, commission, income, distributions and other proceeds,
whether in cash or otherwise, including the proceeds arising out of the liquidation of
investments from the equity accounted investee.

e  Pledge of bank accounts for amounts not exceeding SR 15.5 million.

Furthermore, the Company has unconditionally agreed to dispose certain domestic and
international real estate properties and utilize its proceeds for repayment of restructured
Murabaha Facility Agreement amounting to SR 172.93 million. Moreover, the Company shall not
create charge, mortgage, lien, pledge or other encumbrance on any of the Company’s property,
revenue or assets without obtaining the consent of DFI.

Since the relevant restructuring agreements were not signed at December 31, 2015, in accordance
with applicable financial reporting framework, these debts are not reclassified from short term to
long term liabilities. However, in line with the revised term of the repayment, the principal
amounts payable are as follows:

Repayment
amount for
Restructured Total
Loan DFI Repayments
Within one year 5,412 770 6,182
Between one to two years 275,852 38,963 314,815
Between two to five years 297,491 46,200 343,691
After five years until December 31,

2022 214,701 27,024 241,725
793,456 112,957 906,413
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14. BANK BORROWINGS AND FINANCIAL RESTRUCTURING (continued)

2015 2014

Bank Al Jazira 76,191 77,864
BNP Paribas 70,189 69,880
Saudi British Bank 41,251 15,233
National Commercial Bank 218,142 220,442
Al Rajhi Bank 164,889 164,889
Bank Al Bilad 31,431 97,698
Lenders of subsidiaries (outside Saudi Arabia) 140,029 196,336

742,122 842,342
Long term loans as at December 31, comprise the following:

2015 2014

Current portion of long term loans
Al Rajhi Bank 169,599 169,599
Saudi Industrial Development Fund (DFI) - 27,400
BNP Paribas 7,610 7,610

177,209 204,609
Non-current portion of long term loans
Saudi Industrial Development Fund (DFI) 112,960 98,160
Lenders of subsidiaries (outside Saudi Arabia) 60,512 62,121

173,472 160,281
Total long term loans 350,681 364,890

At December 31, 2015, the Group has overdue loans amounting to SR 779 million out of total
debt of SR 1,093 million. On April 7, 2015, the Company was able to secure agreement on the
“Indicative Restructuring Terms” with a consortium of banks with an aim to provide joint
lenders, certain additional securities and rights on some of the Group’s assets and permitting the
Company to extend term of the loan up to eight years. Moreover on August 12, 2015, the DFI had
also agreed to match the tenor of their loan with other banks’ restructured loan.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
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13.

13.1

14.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The movement in intangible assets during the year ended December 31, 2015 is analyzed as under:

Development Rights and

Goodwill cost licenses  Deferred cost Total
Cost:
Balance at January 1, 2015 74,216 118,163 16,853 24,555 233,787
Additions during the year -- 12,593 143 135 12,871
Balance at December 31, 2015 74,216 130,756 16,996 24,690 246,658
Accumulated amortisation:
Balance at January 1, 2015 - 50,859 13,607 15,676 80,142
Charge during the year -- 13,125 311 2,538 15,974
Balance at December 31, 2015 -- 63,984 13,918 18,214 96,116
Net book value:
December 31, 2015 74,216 66,772 3,078 6,476 150,542
December 31, 2014 74,216 67,304 3,246 8,879 153,645

On July 31, 2009, the Group acquired 79% of the issued share capital of Elimsan Salt Cihazlari ye
Elektromekanik San ve Tic. A.S. (group of companies) for a consideration of SR 128.34 million
that resulted in goodwill amounting to SR 86.56 million. During the year ended December 31,
2014, the Group performed an impairment analysis and consequently, SR 12.34 million was
recorded as impairment.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, a detailed impairment assessment of goodwill was
carried out by an independent consultant, based on which management believes that no impairment
is required in goodwill. Key assumptions of the assessment were as follows:

Weighted average cost of capital — 9.74%
Accounts receivable turnover — 81 days
Terminal Growth rate — 3.5%

Accounts payable turnover — 157 days
Effective tax rate — 20%

BANK BORROWINGS AND FINANCIAL RESTRUCTURING

The Group has several financing arrangements with local and foreign banks and development
financial institutions (DFI) with short and long-term maturity to finance its working capital and
capital expenditure requirements. All these loans are obtained at prevailing commercial rates.

Short term loans are secured by assignment of the Group’s receivables and have contractual
maturity within one year, whereas the loans relating to subsidiaries’ are secured by the Company’s
guarantee. At December 31, 2015, short term loans comprise of the following lenders:
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The movement in property, plant and equipment during the year ended December 31, 2015 is
analyzed as under:
Plant, Capital
machineries Furniture  work-in-
Lands Buildings and Vehicles and fixtures progress Total
Cost:
Balance at January 1, 2015 178,933 435,507 1,342,282 146,339 12,929 2,115,990
Additions during the year -- 341 -- 985 17,753 19,079
Disposals during the year (7,463) (1,927) (12,423) o1 -- (21,904)
Transfers during the year - 1,270 6,898 2,080 (10,248) -
Balance at December 31, 2015 171,470 435,191 1,336,757 149,313 20,434 2,113,165
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at January 1, 2015 - 241,706 1,015,637 111,445 -- 1,368,788
Additions during the year -- 12,183 49,879 13,557 -- 75,619
Disposals during the year - (356) (12,216) (248) - (12,820)
Balance at December 31, 2015 - 253,533 1,053,300 124,754 - 1,431,587
Net book value:
December 31, 2015 171,470 181,658 283,457 24,559 20,434 681,578
December 31, 2014 178,933 193,801 326,645 34,894 12,929 747,202
12.1 Capital work-in-progress represents buildings and plant and machineries under construction.
12.2 Depreciation charge for the year ended December 31, has been allocated as follows:
2015 201
Cost of sales 61,380 65,464
General and administrative expenses (Note 22) 13,883 12,543
Selling and marketing expenses (Note 23) 356 369
75,619 78,376
12.3 Certain machinery and equipment at December 31, 2015 having cost of SR 25.1 million (2014: SR
25.1 million) and net book value of SR 22.1 million (2014: SR 22.5 million) have been acquired
under finance lease arrangement. (Note 15)
12.4 At December 31, 2015 certain assets with a net book value of SR 224.1 million (2014: SR 133.9

million) were pledged as collateral to certain credit facilities.
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10. INVESTMENT IN EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES (continued)

10.3 Summarised financial information of major equity accounted investee is as follows:

Midal Cable Ownership

W.L.L. % Assets Liabilities Revenues Net income
2015 50% 1,926,521 991,583 3,598,511 168,135
2014 50% 2,208,379 1,179,499 3,004,976 234,829

10.4 As Xeca Information Technology has reported losses during previous years, the Company’s
carrying value of investments has reduced to SR NIL (2014: SR NIL).

11. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The movement in investment properties during the year ended December 31, 2015 is analyzed as

under:
2015 2014

Cost:

Balance at January 1 47,123 47,734
Disposals during the year -- (611)
Balance at December 31 47,123 47,123
Depreciation:

Balance at January 1 16,404 15,439
Charge for the year 962 965
Balance at December 31 17,366 16,404
Net book value 29,757 30,719

11.1 The Group has pledged its investment properties with AK Bank to secure credit facilities.

11.2 The depreciation over investment property is allocated to general and administrative expenses.
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9. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayment and other current assets balances at December 31, comprise the following:

2015 2014
Advances to suppliers 51,543 26,886
Deposits (Note 9.1) 46,860 43,362
Prepaid expenses 25,575 15,596
Other receivables 32,252 24,933
156,230 110,777

9.1 Deposits include an amount of SR 8.7 million (2014: SR 8.8 million) paid to the Custom
Authorities on account of custom duty levied on the Company for certain imports of copper rods,
the main raw material for cable production and it is considered duty exempt for all cable
producers. Based on the exemption available in the Customs Act, the Company is pursuing this
matter with the relevant authorities for the refund of such deposit, the Company is confident that
the amount will be fully recovered by December 31, 2016.

10. INVESTMENT IN EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES

10.1 The carrying value of the investments in equity accounted investees as on December 31, comprise
of the following:

2015 2014
Midal Cables W.L.L. (Note 10.2 and 10.3) 469,985 469,583
Xeca International Information Technology (Note 10.4) -- --
469,985 469,583
10.2 The movement in investments in equity accounted investees is as follows:
2015 2014
Balance at January 1 469,583 437,902
Share in net income of equity accounted investees 83,763 114,540
Share of net movement of unrealised (loss) / gain
relating to cash flow hedges and translation of foreign
operations (6,486) 4,308
Dividends (76,875) (87,167)
Balance at December 31 469,985 469,583
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7. UNBILLED REVENUE

Unbilled revenue at December 31, comprise the following:

2015 2014
Unbilled revenue 65,811 78,570
Less: Provision for unbilled revenue (1,489) (1,489)
Net unbilled revenue
64,322 77,081

Unbilled revenue represents project related revenue recognised, using percentage of completion
method, but not yet billed as at December 31, 2015. This also includes an amount of SR 45.26
million (December 31, 2014: SR 50.4 million) which remains overdue for billing for more than
one year. The management believes that this amount will be invoiced and collected during 2016.

8. INVENTORIES

Inventories at December 31, comprise the following:

2015 014
Raw materials 189,445 188,826
Finished goods 140,341 210,550
Work in process 58,237 74,424
Spare parts and wooden reels 31,938 28,466
419,961 502,266
Less: Allowance for slow moving and obsolete inventories (88,159) (83,388)
331,802 418,878

The movement in provision for slow moving and obsolete inventories is as follows:

2015 201
Balance at January 1 83,388 58,333
Provision made during the year 22,108 35,123
Written off during the year (17,337) (10,068)
Balance at December 31 88,159 83,388
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6. TRADE RECEIVABLES
6.1 Trade receivables at December 31, comprise the following:
015 2014
Other customers 690,701 567,343
Related parties (Note 27) 861 --
691,562 567,343
Less: provision for doubtful debts (170,148) (210,278)
521,414 357,065
6.2 The movement in provision for doubtful debts is as follows:
2015 2014
Balance at January 1 210,278 206,308
Provision for the year - 3,970
Reversal of provision for the year (Note 6.3) (40,130) --
Balance at December 31 170,148 210,278
6.3 During the year, the Group has recovered significant amount of outstanding debts and
accordingly provision held against these debts has been reversed. The recoveries of the old
outstanding receivables are principally driven by the improvements in the collection process,
including rigorous follow up with the customers.
6.4 The Group’s receivables are held as collateral by the banks against short term bank debts (Note
14).
6.5 The ageing of trade receivables is as follows:
Up to six Above six and Above one
months up to one year ear Total
December 31, 2015 382,766 114,528 194,268 691,562
December 31, 2014 286,020 137,790 143,533 567,343
6.6 The provision analysis of the Group’s receivable is as follows:
Past due but not impaired
Neither past Above six and Above
due nor Above three and up to twelve twelve
impaired up to six months months months Total
31 December 2015 215,557 99,438 97,194 109,225 521,414
31 December 2014 171,582 15,655 87,782 82,046 357,065

6.7 Retention receivable represents amounts withheld by the customers in accordance with the terms
of the agreements for sales and turnkey projects. The amounts are expected to be collected by

December 2017.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

t) Leasing

Leases are classified as capital leases whenever the terms of the lease, transfer
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Assets held under capital leases are recognised as assets of the Group at the lower of the
present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair market value of the assets at the
inception of the lease.

Finance costs, which represent the difference between the total leasing commitments and
the lower of the present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair market value of
the assets at the inception of the lease, are charged to the consolidated statement of income
over the term of the relevant lease in order to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on
the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting year.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to consolidated statement of income on
a straight line basis over the term of the operating lease.

5. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and Bank balances at December 31, comprise the following:

2015 201
Cash on hand 431 490
Cash at bank - current accounts 33,048 34,682
Cz;)sh and cash equivalents for cash flow statement 33,479 35.172
urposes
Restricted cash 26,615 26,779
Cash and bank balances 60,094 61,951

5.1 Restricted cash represents the cash held in current accounts, under lien, not available to the Group
for its operations.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

r)

s)

Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The derivative instruments used by the Group are designated as cash flow hedges.

When the hedging instrument matures or expires or the hedge ceases to be effective,
any associated accumulated gain or loss in other reserves is reclassified to statement
if income in the same period during which the hedged item affects statement of
income.

Changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised in the consolidated statement of income as they arise.
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. At that time,
for forecast transactions, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
recognised in equity is retained in equity until the forecasted transaction occurs. If a
hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss
recognised in equity is transferred to the consolidated statement of income for the
period.

ii) The Group uses interest rate swaps to manage its exposure to interest rate fluctuations
on its bank borrowings.

Interest rate swaps, if material, are presented as a non-current asset in case of
favorable contracts or a non-current liability in case of unfavorable contracts if the
remaining maturity of the instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to
be realised or settled within 12 months. Other derivatives are presented as current
assets or current liabilities.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Saudi Arabian Riyals at the rate of
exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date. All differences are taken to the consolidated statement of income. Non-monetary
items measured at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of initial recognition.

Foreign operations

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are converted into Saudi Arabian Riyals at the
exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. The equity components of foreign
subsidiaries with the exception of retained earnings are translated at the exchange rates in
effect at the dates the related items originated. The elements of foreign subsidiaries’
income statements are translated using the weighted-average exchange rate for the period.
Adjustments resulting from the translation of foreign subsidiaries’ financial statements
into Saudi Arabian Riyals are reported as a separate component of equity (foreign
currency translation reserve) attributable to shareholders of the Company in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0) Provisions

A provision is recognised in the consolidated balance sheet when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions for restructuring costs are recognised when the Group has a detailed formal
plan for the restructuring which has been notified to affected parties.

p)  Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and reported net in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and when the
Group intends to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

q) Segmental reporting

Operating Segment:

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker in order to
allocate resources to the segments and to assess its performance. An operating segment is
a separately identifiable group of assets, operations or entities engaged in revenue
producing activities, and its financial information is separately available.

Geographical Segment:
A geographical segment is a group of assets, operations or entities engaged in revenue
producing activities within a particular economic environment that are subject to risks and

returns different from those operating in other economic environments.

r)  Derivative financial instruments

i) The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as metal futures, to hedge the
exposure against metal price changes risk on purchases and sale of goods.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are recognised as a financial asset
if it has a positive fair value and as a financial liability if has a negative fair value.

The gain or loss on re-measurement to fair value is recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of income. However, changes in fair value of derivative
financial instruments that qualify for cash flow hedge accounting are recorded as
derivative financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet and taken to other
reserves in statement of changes in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

m)

Revenue
Revenue is recognised to the extent of the following recognition requirements:

e it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group,

e it can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made,

e the cost incurred to date and expected future costs are identifiable and can be measured
reliably.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable as per the
contractually defined terms of payment. The specific recognition criteria described below
must also be met before the revenue is recognised.

Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when products are delivered or shipped to customers and
when risks and rewards are transferred. Sales represent the invoiced value of the goods
supplied during the period, net of discounts and returns.

Contract Revenue

Revenue on long-term contracts, where the outcome can be estimated reliably, is
recognised under the percentage of completion method by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity. The stage of completion is measured by calculating the
proportion that costs incurred to date bear to the estimated total costs of a contract. The
percentage of completion is then applied to the total contract value to determine the
revenue earned to date. When the current estimate of total contract costs and revenues
indicate a loss, provision is made for the entire loss on the contract irrespective of the
amount of work done. Revenue recognised in excess of amounts billed to customers are
classified under current assets as unbilled revenue. Amounts billed to customers in excess
of revenue recognised are classified under current liabilities as billings in excess of
revenue.

Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses principally comprise of costs incurred in the distribution
and sale of the Group's products. All other expenses excluding cost of sales and financial
charges are classified as general and administrative expenses.

Allocations between cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses and general and
administrative expenses, when required, are made on a consistent basis.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

h) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction of a qualifying asset are
capitalised up to stage when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use are completed and, otherwise, such costs are charged
to the consolidated statement of income.

i) Trade payable and accruals

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services
received, whether billed by the supplier or not.

1)) Deferred tax

Deferred tax applicable on foreign operations, is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements of the subsidiary and
the corresponding tax bases which are used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

k)  Zakat and income-tax

The Group is subject to zakat in accordance with the regulations of Saudi Department of
Zakat and Income-tax (“DZIT”). Foreign subsidiaries are subject to the relevant income-
tax regulations in their countries of domicile. Group’s zakat and its share in the foreign
subsidiaries income-tax are accrued and charged to the consolidated statement of income
currently. Foreign income-tax attributable to the foreign subsidiaries’ shareholders are
charged to the minority shareholders in accompanying consolidated financial statements.
Additional zakat and foreign income-tax liabilities, if any, related to prior years’
assessments are accounted for in the period in which the final assessments are finalised.

)] Employees’ end-of-service benefits

Employees’ end of service benefits, calculated in accordance with Saudi Arabian labour
regulations, are accrued and charged to the consolidated statement of income. The liability
is calculated at the current value of the vested benefits to which the employee is entitled,
should his services be terminated at the balance sheet date.

The foreign subsidiaries’ end of service liability is determined in accordance with the
applicable laws of the country in which the subsidiaries’ are registered.
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SAUDI CABLE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

f)

)

Investment properties

Properties held for rental or capital appreciation purposes as well as those held for
undetermined future use are classified as investment properties. Investment properties are
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if applicable. The
estimated useful lives over which the investment property is depreciated is 50 years.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets) is including in
the consolidated statement of income in the period in which the investment property is
derecognised.

Intangibles

i) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the investment over the Group's share in the fair value
of the identifiable net assets of the investee company at the date of acquisition and is
stated at cost less any impairment, if any. Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for
impairment, at least annually, to determine whether any objective indicator of impairment
exists unless an event or change in circumstances occur during the year indicating an
impairment of the carrying value which requires a valuation of goodwill during the year.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal.

ii) Research and development costs

Research costs are charged to the consolidated statement of income in the period in which
they are incurred.

Development activities involve a conversion of the results of the research activities into a
plan or design for new products, services and technological mechanism or for significant
improvement on existing products, services or mechanisms, regardless of the purpose
whether being for sale or use. Development costs are recorded when they occur as period
costs and charged to consolidated statement of income. Development costs can only be
capitalised if all of the following conditions are met:

e Clear identification of the product or the process, and the possibility of separating and
measuring costs related to the product or the process in a reliable manner.

e The technological feasibility of the process or the product has been established.

e The intention of the Group to produce and market or use the product or the process.

e Existence of adequate resources, or ensuring that such resources could be made
available to complete the development project and to market or use the product or
process.

e Existence of a market for the product or the process. If the product or process is used
inside the Group, the Group’s benefits from the use should be confirmed.
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For the year ended December 31, 2015
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

d) Investments (continued)

ii) Investments in Securities (Available-for-sale)

Investments purchased neither with the intention of being held to maturity nor for
trading purposes are designated as available for sale investments and initially recorded
at cost and subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses on
subsequent measurement are reported as a separate component of equity until the
investment is derecognised or the investment is determined to be impaired. On
derecognition or impairment, the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in
equity, is included in the consolidated statement of income for the year.

Fair value is determined by reference to the market value in the open market. If fair
value is not available, cost is considered to be the most appropriate objective and
reliable measurement of the fair value of investments.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the asset. Finance costs on borrowings to finance the construction of
the assets are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare
the asset for its intended use.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the item of property, plant and equipment. All other expenditure is
recognised in the consolidated statement of income when incurred.

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of individual item of property, plant and equipment. The estimated useful lives
of assets over which the asset will be depreciated are as follows:

No. of years
Buildings 15-50
Plant and machineries 4-20
Furniture and fixtures 3-15

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress represents all costs relating directly and indirectly to the projects
in progress and is capitalised as property and equipment when the project is completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

b)

d)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are stated at original invoice amount less provisions made for doubtful
debts. A provision against doubtful debts is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect the amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. Bad debts are written off when identified, against its related provisions.
The provisions are charged to consolidated statement of income and any subsequent
recovery of receivable amounts previously written off are credited to consolidated
statement of income.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
using the weighted average method. Cost includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to
their existing location and condition.

In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate
share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value comprises estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less further production costs to completion and appropriate selling and distribution costs.
Provision is made, where necessary, for non-metal components of obsolete, slow moving
and defective stocks.

Investments
i) Investment in equity accounted investees

Investment in equity accounted investees in which the Group exercises significant
influence are recorded using the equity method, under which the investment is stated
initially at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Group's
share of the net assets of the investee. These are referred to as associates or jointly
controlled entities. The Group's share in the investees' net income for the period is
included in the consolidated statement of income and its share in post-acquisition
movement in reserves is recognised directly in the Group’s statement of changes in
equity. Dividends are recorded when the right to receive the dividend is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(e) Use of estimates and judgments (continued)

- Useful lives of property and equipment
The management determines the estimated useful lives of property and equipment for
calculating depreciation. This estimate is determined after considering expected usage
of the assets and physical wear and tear. Management reviews the residual value and
useful lives annually and change in depreciation charges, if any, are adjusted in current
and future periods.

3. GOING CONCERN AND POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

At December 31, 2015, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by SR 706.18
million (December 31, 2014: SR 845.08 million) and accumulated losses have reached to SR
365.64 million (December 31, 2014: SR 367.33 million), which is 48.11% (December 31, 2014:
48.33%) of the Company’s share capital. These circumstances indicate the existence of material
uncertainties that may cast doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Management has made an internal assessment and comprehensive plans that supports the Group’s
ability to achieve its operational goals that provides adequate resources for continuing the business
for the foreseeable future, with sufficient cash resources available to service its debt obligations,
meeting its working capital requirements and financial commitments as and when they fall due.
Accordingly, these consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

However, on February 23, 2016, upon signing of the financial restructuring agreements with four
of its lenders; the Group managed to defer repayment of its debt amounting to SR 793 million over
a period of 7 years culminating with a final payment at the end of December 2022 (Note 14). This
has not resulted in reclassification of debt to long term in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework. This has, however, reduced the required cash outflows from SR 793 million
to SR 6.2 million during 2016 and SR 315 million during 2017 (Note 14).

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the
consolidated financial statements. Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform

with the current year’s presentation.

a)  Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances comprises of cash on hand, cash at banks in current accounts and
other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three-month or less,
if any.

For the purposes of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand,
cash at banks in current accounts and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three-month or less, if any, which are available to the Group without
any restrictions.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(e) Use of estimates and judgments (continued)

- Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-current assets including goodwill are reviewed for impairment losses whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss, if any, is recognised for the amount by which the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset's or cash generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-current assets
other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
impairment at each reporting date. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but the increased carrying amount should not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the assets or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income, immediately in the consolidated statement of
income. Impairment losses recognised on goodwill are not reversible.

The company performs impairment reviews annually if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. Determination of the assets’ recoverable
amount on assets involves the use of estimates and can have a material impact on the
respective values as at December 31, 2015 and ultimately the amount of any
impairment. During the year, the Company has engaged an external consultant to assess
the carrying value of the assets and the provisions for impairment required, if any.

- Cost to complete the projects
As part of application of percentage of completion method on contract accounting, the
cost to complete the project is estimated. These estimates include, amongst other items,
the construction costs, variation orders by contractors and the cost of meeting other
contractual obligations to the customers. Such estimates are reviewed at regular
intervals. Any subsequent changes in the estimated cost to complete may affect the
results of the subsequent periods. Contract variations are recognised as revenue to the
extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue which can be reliably
measured. This requires the exercise of judgment by management based on prior
experience, application of contract terms and relationships with the contract owners and
stage of negotiations reached.

- Contract claims

A claim is an amount that that the contractor seeks to collect from the customer or
another party as reimbursements for costs not included in the contract price. A claim
may arise from customer caused delays, prolongation costs, cost of acceleration of
project, program errors in specification or design and disputed variation in contract
work. The measurement of the amounts of revenue arising from claims is subject to a
high level of uncertainty and often depends on the outcome of negotiations. Therefore,
claims are only included in contract revenue when the amount has been accepted by the
customer and can be reliably measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(c) Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interest (“NCI”) represents the interest in subsidiary companies, not held
by the Company which are measured at their proportionate share in the subsidiary’s
identifiable net assets. Transactions with Non-controlling interest parties are treated as
transactions with parties external to the Group.

(d)  Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements have been presented in Saudi Arabian Riyals (SR)
which is the Group’s presentation currency and Parent Company’s functional currency. All
financial information presented in SR has been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise stated.

(e) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in
future periods affected.

The key areas requiring significant management judgments are as follows:

- Provision for trade receivable

A provision for impairment of trade receivable is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the agreement. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization and default
or delinquency in payments are considered indicators of objective evidence that the
trade receivable is impaired. For significant individual amounts, assessment is made on
an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but are overdue,
are assessed collectively and a provision is recognised considering the length of time
considering past recovery rates.

- Impairment of slow moving and obsolete inventories
The management makes a provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory items.
Estimates of net realizable value of inventories are based on the most reliable evidence
at the time the estimates are made. These estimates take into consideration fluctuations
of price or cost directly related to events occurring subsequent to the balance sheet date
to the extent that such events confirm conditions existing at the end of year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

1. THE COMPANY, SUBSIDIARIES AND ITS PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (continued)

As at December 31, the Group has the following investments in equity accounted investees:

Country of % of
Company’s name Principal activities incorporation ownership
2015 2014

Midal Cables W.L.L. Conductors & related Bahrain 50% 50%

products Implementation of

information
XECA International Information ~ Systems and network Saudi Arabia 25% 25%
Technology services

All subsidiaries and equity accounted investees have the same reporting period as of the Parent
Company.

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the accounting standards generally accepted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, issued
by Saudi Organizations for Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA).

(b)  Basis of measurement

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis, except for available-for-sale investments and derivative financial
instruments which are stated at fair values, using the accrual basis of accounting and the
going concern concept (Note 3).

() Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the parent
company and its subsidiaries, as explained in Note (1) above.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, the right to variability of return from its
involvement with the investee and its ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee, is considered. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date
control ceases. All intra-group balances and financial transactions resulting from
transactions between the Company and the subsidiaries and those arising between the
subsidiaries are eliminated in preparing these consolidated financial statements. Any
unrealised gains and losses arising from intra-group transactions are also eliminated.
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1. THE COMPANY, SUBSIDIARIES AND ITS PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Saudi Cable Company (“the Company” or “the Parent Company”) is a Saudi joint stock company
registered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under Commercial Registration No. 4030009931
dated 27 Rabi Thani 1396H, corresponding to April 27, 1976.

The objectives of the Group (“Parent Company” and its following “subsidiaries”) are to
manufacture and supply electrical and telecommunication cables, copper rod, PVC compounds,
wooden reels and related products. The Group is also engaged in the contracting, trading,
distribution and supply of cables, electronic products, information technology products and
related accessories.

The registered office of the Company is located at the following address:
Saudi Cable Company

P. O. Box 4403, Jeddah 21491

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include assets, liabilities, the results of the
operations and the cash flows of the following subsidiaries:

Country of Effective % of
Company’s name Principal activities incorporation ownership
2015 2014
Domestic
Saudi Cable Company for Purchase and sale of Saudi Arabia  100%  100%
Marketing Limited electrical cables and related
products
Mass Projects for Power and Turnkey power and Saudi Arabia  100%  100%
Telecommunications Limited telecommunication projects
Mass Centers for Distribution of  Electrical and Saudi Arabia  100%  100%
Electrical Products Limited telecommunication
distribution services
International
Mass Kablo Yatirim Ve Ticaret Holding Company Turkey 100%  100%
Anonim Anonim Sirketi (Previously Mass Holding
Company)
Demirer Kablo Tesisleri Sanayi Manufacture, supply Turkey 100%  100%
Ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi and trading of electrical
cables
Mass International Trading International trade Ireland 100%  100%
Company Limited (dormant)
Saudi Cable Company (U.A.E) Sale of cables and related United Arab ~ 100%  100%
L.L.C. products Emirates
Elimsan Salt Cihazlari ye Manufacture and distribution Turkey 94% 79%
Elektromekanik San ve Tic. A.S  of electronic gears and goods
Elimsan Metalurji ve Makine Manufacture and distribution Turkey 94% 79%

San. Ve Tic. A.S. of electronic gears and goods
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SAUDI CABLE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

Notes 2015 2014

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income / (loss) before Zakat and income-tax and non-
controlling interests 14,734 (190,301)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and

investment properties 11&12 76,581 79,341
Amortization of intangible assets 13 15,974 16,485
Impairment of goodwill - 12,342
(Reversal) / provision for doubtful debts 6 (40,130) 3,970
Provision for slow-moving inventories 8 22,108 35,123
Loss / (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

and investment property 1,708 (5,526)
Change in fair value of investments (26) 1,698
Deferred tax asset 1,790 (2,709)
Change in non-controlling interest - net 408) 5,103
Share of profit from equity accounted investees 10 (83,763) (114,540)
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 18 13,355 16,663
Finance charges - net 24 21,733 112,039
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade receivables (124,219) 386,678
Retention receivables 62,058 (222,744)
Prepayments and other current assets (45,453) 51,794
Unbilled revenue 12,759 130,910
Inventories 64,968 66,469
Accounts payable 112,809 (268,586)
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (23,218) 146,567
Due to related parties 21,378 (13,465)

124,738 247311

Zakat and income-tax paid (549) (929)
Financial charges paid 24 (42,835) (51,614)
Employees’ end of service benefits paid 18 (11,848) (7,384)
Net cash provided by operating activities 69,506 187,384
Cash flows from Investing activities
Additions to property, plant and equipment 12 (19,079) (2,251)
Additions to intangible assets 13 (12,871) (17,257)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 7,376 8,346
Dividends received from an equity accounted investees 10 76,875 87,167
Net cash provided by investing activities 52,301 76,005
Cash flows from financing activities
Net movement in long and short-term loans (114,429) (259,068)
Net movement in obligations under finance lease (9,235) (11,454)
Net movement in restricted cash against financing 164 65,110
Net movement in other long-term liabilities - (52,945)
Net cash used in financing activities (123,500) (258,357)
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents (1,693) 5,032
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 35,172 30,140
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5 33,479 35,172
Supplemental schedule of non-cash information:
Cumulative changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments (6,429) 43,210
Foreign currency translation movement 2,909 [CR1))

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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SAUDI CABLE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

Notes 201 014

Revenue 29 1,918,059 1,716,321
Costs of revenue 29 (1,849,654) (1,709,658)
Gross profit 68,405 6,663
General and administrative expenses 22 (114,620) (124,090)
Selling and distribution expenses 23 (55,859) (84,058)
Loss from operations (102,074) (201,485)
Financial charges-net 24 (21,733) (112,039)
Share of profit from equity accounted investees 10 83,763 114,540
Other income - net 25 54,778 8,683
Net income / (loss) for the year before zakat and

income-tax and non-controlling interests 14,734 (190,301)
Zakat and income-tax 17 (13,900) (13,535)
Net income / (loss) for the year before non-

controlling interests 834 (203,836)
Non-controlling interests 853 2,157
Net income / (loss) for the year attributable to the

Company’s shareholders 1,687 (201,679)
Loss per share from operations for the year (SR) 26 (1.34) (2.65)
Earnings / (loss) per share from net profit / (loss) for

the year (SR) 26 0.02 (2.65)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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SAUDI CABLE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET - Continued

As at December 31, 2015

(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

EQUITY
Share capital

Statutory reserve
Cumulative changes in fair values
Foreign currency translation reserve

Accumulated losses
Total equity attributable to the shareholders’
of the Parent Company

Non-controlling interests (NCI)
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Notes

19
20
21

2015 2014
760,000 760,000
63,432 63,432
(13,694) (20,123)
(9,143) (6,234)
(365,644) (367,331)
434,951 429,744
6,154 7,415
441,105 437,159
2,632,894 2,655,793

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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SAUDI CABLE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at December 31, 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Saudi Arabian Riyals)

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and Bank balances

Trade receivables

Unbilled revenue

Inventories

Retentions receivable - current portion
Prepayments and other current assets
Total current assets

Non-current assets:

Investments in securities

Investments in equity accounted investees
Retentions receivable

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Deferred tax asset

Intangible assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Short-term loans

Long-term loans - current portion

Obligations under finance lease — current portion
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Due to related parties

Zakat and income-tax

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term loans
Obligations under finance lease

Employees’ end of service benefits
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Notes

O N0 3N

11
12

13

14
14
15

16
27
17

14
15

18

2015 2014
60,094 61,951
521,414 357,065
64,322 77,081
331,802 418,878
88,698 90,688
156,230 110,777
1,222,560 1,116,440
650 624
469,985 469,583
71,988 132,056
29,757 30,719
681,578 747,202
5,834 5,524
150,542 153,645
1,410,334 1,539,353
2,632,894 2,655,793
742,122 842,342
177,209 204,609
9,454 9,919
463,995 351,186
392,827 447,153
62,949 41,571
80,191 64,740
1,928,747 1,961,520
173,472 160,281
20,126 28,896
69,444 67,937
263,042 257,114
2,191,789 2,218,634

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

a. At December 31, 2015 Group’s current liabilities exceeded current assets by SR 706.18 million
(December 31, 2014: SR 845.08 million) and accumulated losses have reached to SR 365.64
million (December 31, 2014: SR 367.33 million), representing 48.11% (December 31, 2014:
48.33%) of the Company’s share capital. Subsequent to the year end, on February 23, 2016 the
Group managed to secure restructuring of its debt amounting to SR 793 million with four main
lenders, allowing the Group to reschedule payment over the next 7 years period; subject to the
fulfilment of various conditions primarily before December 31, 2017 (see note 14), the likelihood
of which, cannot be predicted with reasonable certainty. Moreover, certain legal formalities are
pending with another financier for the awarding of a waiver for the breach of loan covenants and
for matching the tenor of their loan with other restructured loans. These circumstances indicate
the existence of material uncertainties that may cast doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

Although management has an internal plan that supports the Group’s ability to achieve its
operational goals and that provides sufficient resources for continuing the business for the
foreseeable future, with sufficient cash resources available to service its debt obligations, meet its
working capital requirements and financial commitments as and when due. However, it does not
reflect any adjustments that might result from a failure to fulfill the requirements of the recent
loan restructuring agreement. Accordingly, the notes to the consolidated financial statements do
not sufficiently disclose the implications on Group’s financial position of a failure to fulfil these
requirements.

b.  We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence in respect of the recoverability of
unbilled revenues of SR 45.26 million (December 31, 2014: SR 50.40 million) that is overdue for
more than one year. This relates to one of the subsidiaries and represents revenue carned but not
yet billed as at December 31, 2015.

¢.  We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence in respect of the commercial and
financial feasibility of development cost incurred for the development of specialised cables and
accessories, amounting to SR 66.77 million (December 31, 2014: SR 67.3 million), which has
been included under intangible assets.

Qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis of Qualified
Opinion paragraphs:

1)  the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2015 and the consolidated results
of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with generally accepted
accounting standards in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia appropriate to the circumstances of the
Group; and

2)  comply with the requirements of the Regulations for Companies and the Company’s Bylaws with
respect to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements.

0 MG Al Fozan & Partners

Ebrahim Oboud Baeshen 4
License No.382 fi cr.a8

\'L:] (AT
P i

D4

o

Jumada Al Awal 16, 1437H
Corresponding to February 25, 2016
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SAUDI CABLE COMPANY

KPMG

KPMG Al Fozan & Partners Telephone +966 12 698 9595
Certified Public Accountants Fax +966 12 698 9494
Zahran Business Centre, Tower A, 9th Floor Internet www.kpmg.com.sa
Prince Sultan Street

PO Box 55078 License No. 46/11/323 issued 11/3/1992

Jeddsh 21534
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Shareholders
Saudi Cable Company
Jeddah, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Saudi Cable Company (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as “the Group™) which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at December 31, 2015 and the related consolidated statements of income, cash flows
and changes in equity for the year then ended and the attached notes 1 through 33 which form an
integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia and in compliance with Article {123) of the Regulations for Companies and Company’s
Bylaws, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
etror. Management has provided us with all the information and explanations that we require relating
to our audit of these consolidated financial statements.

Auditors’ responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. Except for the matters described in the Basis for qualified opinion qualification paragraph, we
conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Saudi Arabia. Those
standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, In making those risk assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaiuating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified opinion.

KPMG Al Fozan & Pariners Certifled Public Accountants, a reglstered

company In the Kingdem of Saudi Arabia, and a non-pariner member

firm of the KPMG network of independent firms affiliated with KPMG
International Cocperative, a Swiss entity.

Annual Report 2015






SAUDI CABLE COMPANY

19 - BOARD OF directors RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE SHAREHOLDERS:

—

2
3.
4

5.

Approval of the Board of the Directors’ Report for 2015.
Approval of the 2015 year-end financial statements and external auditors’ report.
Absolving the Board of Directors of their responsibilities for the year 2015.

Approval of the appointment of external auditors for the year 2016.

Approval of the Business and Agreements made by and between the company and related parties.

The Chairman and the Board of Directors duly expresses appreciation and gratitude to the Custodian of the
two Holy Mosques King Salman Bin Abdul-Aziz Al-Saud; HRH Crown Prince Mohammed Bin Naif bin Ab-

dul-Aziz Al-Saud - Deputy Prime Minister & Minister of Interior; HRH Crown Prince Mohammad Bin Salman

Bin Abdul-Aziz Al-Saud - Second Deputy Prime Minister & Minister of the Defense, and the Government, for

their continued cooperation and support.

Thanks are extended to the Shareholders for their continued support and Executive Management and com-

pany’s staff for their great efforts which helped to achieve company’s goals in 2015.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
CHAIRMAN
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17 - IMPORTANT DATES FOR SHAREHOLDERS AND STAKEHOLDERS:

The BOD endeavors to meet four times each year. The dates of meetings are dependent on the maximum
attendance availability of its members. The following tentative dates have been initially fixed for important

meetings to be convened in 2016. The actual meeting dates may vary upon BOD Members’ availability.

Meeting Day and Date

1 | Ordinary General Assembly (OGA) Monday, 25-07-1437 H — 02-05-2016
2 | Board of Directors Meeting Wednesday, 01-05-1437 H — 10-02-2016
3 | Board of Directors Meeting Sunday, 17-07-1437 H — 24-04-2016
4 | Board of Directors Meeting Sunday, 28-09-1437 H — 03-07-2016
5 | Board of Directors Meeting Sunday, 29-01-1438 H — 30-10-2016

18 - BOARD DECLARATIONS

> LN

10.
11.

12.
13.

Proper books of account have been maintained.
The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented.
There are no significant doubts concerning the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The company’s financial statements were prepared in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and such accounting principles are applied on
a consistent basis.

The company has not issued any financial instruments such as stock options or stock rights that may
be converted into shares.

There were no major contracts awarded to any related parties, other than those disclosed in the
afore-mentioned section of this report and also similarly disclosed in the financial statements.

There were no outstanding loans that neither were due from the directors during the year nor were
any loan repayments made.

There were no loans given to any of its members.
The company has not made any transactions relating to its own stocks.
Bank loans and its movements are disclosed in this report, and in the financial statements.

There were no other share dealings entered by the company with any of its directors or immediate
members of their families other than those disclosed above.

No waiver of rights has been received from any shareholder.

The external auditor has given a qualified opinion on the financial statements.
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SAUDI CABLE COMPANY

39.4 The remainder shall be distributed among the shareholders as an additional dividend, or be carried

forward for subsequent years in the manner recommended by the Board of Directors and approved by the
General Assembly.

Article 40 — Distribution of Dividends:

The dividends decided to be distributed among the shareholders shall be paid at the place and time fixed by
the Board of Directors within the guidelines or the relevant directives issued by the Ministry of Commerce.

Voting : The company had included a resolution on approval of cumulative voting in the agenda of the Extraor-
dinary General assembly No.39 on 3/8/1433H corresponding to 23/6/2012G; but there was no quorum and
therefore the cumulative voting method has not been incorporated in the company’s Bylaws till date. Hence the
company has not implemented it.

Share Capital of the Company: The company has a fully paid up capital of SR 760,000,000 divided into
76,000,000 equal shares of SR 10 each.
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16 - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The company endeavors to lay down the basis, the policies and procedures that match the Corporate Gover-
nance Regulations issued by the Capital Market Authority as per Resolution No. 1-212-2006 dated 21/10/1427
H corresponding to 12/11/2006G.

Taking guidance from the Corporate Governance Regulations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the company’s
Corporate Governance Regulations have been approved vide Resolution No. 10 issued by the General As-
sembly of the Shareholders at its meeting No. 36 held on 5-7-1432 H / 7-6-2011G.

Operationally, the company has applied what has been laid down in the Regulations, either fully or partly,
through the Bylaws and the Internal Regulations and Procedures and the related mechanisms, beside its ad-

herence to the Accounting Standards recognized in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The company is continuously working on updating the policies and procedures governing the application of

these regulations.

Shareholders’ Rights and communications with them: All shareholders are entitled to all rights attached to
the share and as described in the company’s Bylaws and as laid down in the governance regulations, in partic-
ular the right to participate in governance and profits of the company. These documents cover the rights of the
shareholders and they may acquaint themselves of these by visiting the company’s website (www.saudicable.
com); this is in addition to what is published periodically on ‘Tadawul’ and that published from time to time in

the local newspapers.

Dividend Policy: Articles 39 and 40 of the company’s Bylaws cover the policy on distribution of annual profits

as follows:
Article 39 — Distribution of annual profits:

The annual profits arrived at after deducting all general expenditures and other charges, shall be distributed

as follows:

39.1 A sum of 10 per cent of the net profits shall be set aside to form a Legal Reserve. The Ordinary General
Assembly may stop such setting aside when the said reserve equal fifty per cent of the company’s paid-up

capital.

39.2 Out of the remainder of the net profits a first dividend of not less than five per cent of the paid-up capital

shall be distributed among the shareholders.

39.3 Then an amount of not more than 10% (maximum of SR 200,000 per Director) of the remainder of the net

profits, shall be allocated and distributed to the members of the Board of Directors.

43 | Annual Report 2015



DS

The Group had the following related party transactions during the years ended 31 December:

Related party

Nature of transaction

(SR’000)
2015

2014

Management Remunerations 45 72
Midal Cables W.L.L. - Purchases of Aluminum Rod 26,838 6,865
50% Owned by SCC: In total the BOD has

6 members, of which 3 are nominated from | pividends income 76.875 87 167
SCC’s management. ' '
éﬁcgtlemcdounitr;es L'?;\';egOD of which Expenses of Travel, Consultancy,

. pany. ) Training, Legal etc. charged to 2,377 2,866
includes 2 members from SCC BOD: the Group. advances and Loans

Khalid A. Alireza & Yousuf A. Alireza P: '

XECA International Information Technology _ . .

25% owned by SCC and 25% owned by 'AT d?;;i%im'”g services paid/ 4,105 6,742
Xenel Industries

Related party balances comprised of the following as at 31 December:

Due from related parties
Hidada Limited 483 -
Alujain Corporation - -
XECA International Information Technology 378 -
TOTAL 861 -
Due to related parties
Xenel Industries Limited 38,596 36,219
Midal Cables W.L.L 22,237 2,687
Chem Gilobal Limited 664 664
XECA International Information Technology - 549
Hidada Limited 1,452 1,451
TOTAL 62,949 41,570

The above related party transactions along with an external auditor’s special report will be submitted at the

next Ordinary General Assembly (OGA).

15 - POTENTIAL RISKS

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value
and cash flow interest rate risks), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group has established controls on counter-party risks and uses derivative instru-
ments to hedge its major risk exposures. Property risks, Business Interruption, Public/Product Liability etc.
are covered through appropriate insurance policies.

Risk management is carried out by senior management under policies approved by the Board of Directors.
The most important types of risks are credit risks, currency risk and fair value and cash flow interest rate risks.
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CMA’s Announcements Published on their website

1. On 26/02/2015, CMA suspended trading of shares as the company failed to announce its financial state-
ments for the year 2014 during the specified period mentioned in the listing rules. Following the compa-
ny’s announcement of 1t Quarter 2015 interim financials on 21/04/2015, CMA revoked the suspension
and trading of shares resumed on 26/04/2015.

13 - PENALTIES IMPOSED BY CAPITAL MARKET AUTHORITY (CMA)

There following penalties were imposed by Capital Market Authority during 2015.

1. On 23/03/2015 CMA imposed a penalty of SR 30,000 because the company’s announcement published
on the Saudi Stock Exchange (Tadawul’s) website regarding its preliminary financial results for the period
ending on 31/12/2013 (Twelve Months) did not mention the emphasis of matter paragraph mentioned in
the auditor’s report.

2. On 13/04/2015 CMA imposed a penalty of SR 40,000 because the company’s announcement on its an-
nual financial statements for the period ending on 31/12/2013 was not clear as it did not mention all the
reasons for the increase in 2013 losses compared to the previous year.

3. On 15/06/2015 CMA imposed a penalty of SR120,000 as the company failed to inform CMA and the
public in a timely manner about signing a binding agreement to restructure the financial debt of the
company on 07/04/2015. It was later announced on 09/04/2015. The company also violated clause (E) of
Article (42) of the Listing Rules. It did not announce its annual financial results for the year 2014 within the
specified period as the company announced on 25/2/2015 the postponement of publication of the annual
financial results for the year 2014 until after the specified period.

4. On 06/07/2015 CMA imposed a penalty of SR 200,000 as the company was late to inform the public in a
timely manner about not convening the 21st extraordinary general assembly. It also failed to disclose the
results of the 39th ordinary general assembly in a timely manner.

14 - TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company, in the normal course of business, has the following major dealings with related parties:

1. The Group engages in regular trade transactions with Midal Cables and Hidada Limited, which are dis-
closed in the annual financial statements. All transactions are enacted on prevailing commercial terms.

2. An affiliate of the Company, XECA, is engaged in providing Information Technology Services at commer-
cial prices.

3. Xenel Industries Limited, under an on-going agreement with the Company, is reimbursed with actual
costs incurred on its behalf for services rendered. Additionally, to support the company’s urgent working
capital requirements an incremental amount of SR 5 million (interest free) was advanced to SCC during
the year 2013, in addition to the SR 25 million (interest free) loan provided during 2012, which is still un-
paid and continues to be interest free.
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Company’s Announcements Published on CMA website (Tadawul)

10.

11.

12.

40

Correction announcement on 26/01/2015 relating to the interim financial results for the period end-

ing on 31/12/2014 (Twelve months).

Announcement on 25/02/2015 and a supplementary ones on 11/03/2015 and on 25/03/2015 and on
09/04/2015 and on 15/04/2015 regarding the postponement of publication of the company’s annual

financial results for the period ended 31/12/2014 and reasons of postponement.

Supplementary announcement on 01/04/2015 related to the latest developments regarding Board
of Directors recommendation on increase of the company share capital through a rights issue. The

principle announcement was announced on Tadawul on 02/10/2014.

Supplementary announcement on 09/04/2015 about the signing of a binding term sheet agreement

with the company’s lenders for restructuring the financial debt of the company.

Supplementary announcement on 12/04/2015 regarding the date of signing the binding term sheet

agreement.

Supplementary announcement on 12/04/2015 relating to the signing of a contract for supply, instal-

lation and inspection of power cables voltage 38 KV.

Supplementary announcement on 23/04/2015 explaining certain issues mentioned in the External

Auditor Report related to the Term Sheet agreement.

Supplementary announcement on 30/06/2015 regarding the latest development of the Terms Sheet

Agreement signed with three banks notably Alrajhi Bank, NCB and Bank Aljazira.

Supplementary announcement on 08/10/2015 stating that the preparation of legal documentation of

the Terms Sheet Agreement is in an advanced stage, but is not yet complete.

Supplementary announcement on 30/11/2015 stating that the preparation of draft legal documenta-

tion of the Terms Sheet Agreement has just been completed.

Supplementary announcement on 28/12/2015 stating that it has had to delay the signing of the legal
documents of the Terms Sheet Agreement, as one bank has requested certain changes in the legal

wording to conform with provisions in their chosen banking convention.

Announcement on 29/12/2015 regarding the impact of the cabinet resolution in respect of revision

in power products priced.
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12- IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CMA) REGULATIONS

(As of 31 December 2015)

CMA Article No. No. of Partial In Process \\[o]

/ Description clauses Ll uElES Implem  of Impimnt. Appl. HEMEERS
1 3- General Rights of 1 1
Shareholders
4- Shareholders Exercise
2 of Rights and Access to
. 2 2
Information
5- Shareholders Rights
3 related to the General 10 10
Assembly
Article 6/d - is
4 | 6- Voting Rights 4 3 1 not applicable
to the company
5 7- Dividends Rights of 5 5
Shareholders
6 8- Policies and Procedure
related to Disclosure 1 1
7 9- Disclosure in the Board of
Directors’ Report 7 7
8 10- Main Functions of the
Board of Directors 17 17
9 11- Responsibilities of the 8 8
Board
10 | 12- Formation of the Board 9 9
11 13- Committees of the 3 3
Board
12 | 14- Audit Committee 11 1
15- Nomination and
13 | Remuneration 8 8
Committee
14 | 16- Meetings of the Board 4 4
17- Remuneration and
15 | Indemnification of Board
1 1
Members
18- Conflict of Interest within
16 the Board 3 8
17 | Total Clauses 91 90 1
Percentage of o o o
18 . 100% 98.9% 1.1%
Implementation
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2. Nominations & Remunerations Committee:

The main objectives of the Nominations & Remunerations Committee may be summarized as determining the
policies and standards for nominations to the membership of the Board of Directors with periodical review of
the requirements of capabilities and skills for the Board; study of the Board’s strengths and weaknesses and
suggesting ways of addressing it; ensuring the independence of the independent Directors, study of conflict
of interest with their membership of the Boards of other companies; beside studying or suggesting policies

for compensation and bonus to the Board of Directors and Senior Executives.

The Committee has been reconstituted vide BOD Resolution No. BOD 142/2 dated 4 Muharram 1434H corre-
sponding to 18 November 2012G and BOD Resolution 144/3 dated 25/02/2013 as follows:

.No Members Position
1 Dr. Abdullah H. Masri. Chairman of the Committee
2 Yousuf A. Y. Zainal Alireza. Member
3 Dr. Ahmed Saad Gabbani. Expert Member

The newly elected Board, which commenced on 3rd September 2014, has confirmed the continuity of ex-
isting Members of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee in their current positions, until further notice.

Meetings:

The initial Committee had three meetings during the year 2015 as per the following attendance:

No Meeting Date Meeting No Attended By
e Dr. Abdullah Masry
1 09 February 2015 (6) e YousufA. Y. Alireza

¢ Dr. Ahmed Gabbani

* Dr. Abdullah Masry
2 02 March 2015 (7) * YousufA. Y. Alireza

¢ Dr. Ahmed Gabbani

e Dr. Abdullah Masry
3 27 October 2015 (8) * YousufA. Y. Alireza

e Dr. Ahmed Gabbani
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Membership

The following are the current members of the Audit & Risk Committee (As of 31.12.2015):

Members Member of the BOD Non-Executive Shareholder Position
Adnan A. Maimani v v v Chairman

Mohammed Ashraf Tumbi member v v Member

Replacing resigned

Mr. Uzair Afzal

Ala’a Al-Jabri member v v Member

Replacing resigned

Mr. Omar Khalifati

All the Audit & Risk Committee Members are not Employees of SCC Group.

SCC - Audit & Risk Committee Meetings and Result

The committee held 6 meetings in 2015:

\[o) Meeting Date Meeting No Attended By
. Omar Khalifati
1 14/01/2015 | (111) One Hundred Eleven . M. Ashraf Tumbi
. Omar Khalifati
2 19/02/2015 | (112) One Hundred Twelve . M. Ashraf Tumbi
. Omar Khalifati
3 11/06/2015 | (113) One Hundred Thirteen . Adnan A Maimani
. M. Ashraf Tumbi
. Adnan A Maimani
4 18/08/2015 | (114) One Hundred Fourteen . M. Ashraf Tumbi
. . Adnan A Maimani
5 08/10/2015 | (115) One Hundred Fifteen . M. Ashraf Tumbi
. . Adnan A Maimani
6 27/10/2015 | (116) One Hundred Sixteen . M. Ashraf Tumbi

Meeting Fees paid @ SR 3,000 per meeting for each member.

Results and Findings

1.

The Scope and Audit Plan, Procedures and function of the Internal Audit Department were reviewed
and found adequate.

A study of the company’s financial and operational policies/procedures and internal control system
shows that the policies/procedures are adequate and well placed.

The result of Internal Audit showed that internal control procedures were effective throughout the
Group. Examination and review of books of account, financial transactions, reports, data and oper-
ational activities and physical verification of company’s assets and properties showed no significant
procedural violations.

In view of recent basic changes in the organizational structure of the company, the management has
updated the existing Limits of Authority. The revised documents were implemented in 2015.

Financial statements are prepared in accordance with the accounting standards generally accepted
in Saudi Arabia. However, there is a plan under study to switch over to IFRS (International Financial
Reporting System) and most probably IFRS would be adopted in 2017. Company’s subsidiaries in
Turkey have already implemented IFRS.
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11F - BOARD COMMITTEES

1. SCC-Audit Committee

The Audit Committee in the company was formed under the Resolution No. 903 dated 12/08/1414H issued by
the Ministry of Commerce. The formation of the Committee was approved by the Ordinary General Assembly
(OGA) of the shareholders on 30/12/1414H. The Charter of the Audit Committee was approved by the
Board of Directors on 8/6/1994 (Resolution No. BM 65-4).

Mandate

The main objective of the Committee include, but are not limited to, ensuring adequacy of policies, proce-
dures and soundness of the internal control appropriateness of financial accounting and reporting, as well
as ensuring the effectiveness of the internal and external audit functions on an going basis. The audit of the
effectiveness of internal control for the year 2015 showed no substantial or material weakness in the compa-

ny. The committee also reviews the company’s financial statements.

The Audit Committee oversees the work of the internal audit in the company periodically to ensure the ad-
equacy and effectiveness of the internal control system in general and with respect to the fairness of the
financial statements in particular. It also provides ongoing evaluation of the internal control system and its ef-
fectiveness, and deals with any serious observation, in context of the goals of the Board of Directors to obtain

a resolution assurance about the soundness of the design and effectiveness of the same.

In this context the Committee has discussed during the fiscal year 2015 the periodic reports prepared by
the internal auditor and reported to the Board of Directors on actions and recommendations as it deemed
appropriate, and met with external auditors and executive management to discuss matters related to the work

of the company.

The Annual review of the effectiveness of the Internal Control System has not shown any intrinsic weakness

in the company.

The Audit Committee and Board of Directors have confirmed the effectiveness of the internal control pro-
cedures that the company’s objectives have been achieved, and the published financial statements have
been prepared in reliable and dependable manner in accordance with the accounting standards and related

regulations and laws.
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11D - BOD MEETINGS & IMPORTANT RESOLUTIONS

Attended by

154/A

Meeting Dates 2015
155

154/B

Khalid A. Alireza Vv Vv Vv Vv
Shaukat Aziz Vv Vv Vv vV
Saleh E. Al-Husseini By Proxy By Proxy By Proxy By Proxy
Abdullah H. Masry V v v Vv
Adnan A. Maimani By Proxy By Proxy \ \
Yousuf A. Alireza Vv Vv vV Vv
Abdullah M. Rehaimi By Proxy By Proxy v By Proxy

The following important resolutions were passed in the year 2015:

1.

Approval to Authorize Eng. Abdullah Bukhari to represent company with the Capital Market Authority
(CMA). (BOD Circular Res No. BOD-C-2015-2) dated 16-04-2015).

BOD Announcement in regard Unbilled revenues announced in 3 Quarter 2015. (BOD Circular Res

Approval of the continuation of Mr. Khalid Ahmed Yousuf Zainal Alireza in the Chairmanship of the
Board of Directors. (BOD Circular Res No. BOD-C-2015-6) dated 27-12-2015).

Recommendation to shareholders to appoint M/s KPMG AL-Fozan & Al-Sadhan to Audit the finan-
cials of SCC for the year 2015. (BOD Res. No. BOD-155/3 dated 15-06-2015).

Approval to appoint Mr. Ala’a AL-Jabri as a new member in the Audit Committee. (BOD Res. No.

Approval of sale of certain assets in Turkey of the company to benefit from their potential value and
meet the company’s business needs. (BOD Res No. BOD-155/6 of 15-06-2015).

2.
No. BOD-C-2015-4 dated 31-03-2015).
3.
4.
5.
BOD-155/4 dated 15-06-2015).
6.
11E-

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION TO EXECUTIVES AND NON-EXECUTIVE BOD MEMBERS

In SR’000

Five Highest paid senior executives
including President & CFO

Salaries and Allowances - 6,365 6,159
Fees 45 72 -
Bonus - - 2,000 1,195
Total 45 72 8,365 7,354
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SAUDI CABLE COMPANY

11C - DIRECTORS’ OWNERSHIP OF SCC SHARES

The details of the Directors’ and their Families’ ownership of shares in the company is as follows:

A description of any interest of returning to the board members and their spouses and their minor children in
the shares or any of its subsidiaries

No. of : Ownership of first
Name of the Member the beginning 1TSS 2t tng'ug. of snares  Percent  degree reatives &
of 2015 2015 during the year
Khalid A. Alireza 650,524 650,524 - - Included
Shaukat Aziz 1,000 1,000 - - None
Saleh Eid Al-Hussaini 1,000 1,000 - - None
Abdullah H. Masri 2,559 2,559 - - None
Adnan A. Maimani 1,000 1,000 - - None
Yousuf A. Alireza 1,000 1,000 - - None
Eng. Abdullah M. Rehaimi 5,000 5,000 - - None

Neither the Senior Executives, nor their Families acquired any shares during the year 2015. There were no
shares owned by any of them at the end of 2015.
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11B - BRIEF CREDENTIALS

Name of the

Member

Academic

Membership of other Public

Member

Khalid A. Alireza

Classification

Qualifications

Bachelor’s degree in Engi-
neering from University of

California, Berkley.

Joint Stock Companies
1. Chairman of Alujain Corpo-

ration for the petrochemical

industry.

Doctorate in Humanities from
University of Chicago,

Dip in Business Administration
from Harvard University.

. Executive , , 2. Chairman of the National
Chairman - Master’s degree in Engineer- .
, , , , Company for the petrochemi-
ing from University of Califor-
. lin ry.
nia, Berkley. cal industry
Shaukat Aziz Independent - Master's degree in Business
Administration -
1. Saudi Basic Industries
_ . Corporation (SABIC).
Saleh E. Al Hussaini Independent - Master's degree in Economics. 2. Saudi Airlines Cargo
Limited Company.
3. Trade Union Insurance.
- Bachelor’s degree in Humanities
from University of California.
- Master’s degree in Humanities
) from University of Chicago.
Abdullah H. Masri Independent

Coca-Cola Bottling Company of
Saudi Arabia (CCBCSA) for soft
drink.

Adnan A. Maimani

Non-Executive

Master’'s degree in Law from
McGill University, Canada

Saudi Industrial Services Co.
(SISCO)

Yousuf A. Alireza

Non-Executive

Bachelor’s degree in Applied
Sciences in Business Sector
from University of San Francisco
Master’s degree in Business
Administration

Eng. Abdullah M.
Rehaimi

Independent

B.Sc. Mechanical

Engineering - King Fahd University

of Petroleum and Minerals in Saudi
Arabia.

1. Savola Group - a repre-
sentative of the Public In-
vestment Fund - Ministry
of Finance.

2. Alujain Corporation.
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Statement below provides shareholding pattern & principal business activities of the subsidiary companies of
Midal Cables Limited.

Country of Country of Share-

SHE Ll Incorporation ~ Operations  holding % Al LS
. . Manufacturing of Aluminum specialty
1 | Aluwheel WLL Bahrain Bahrain 100 wire with capacity of 9,000 MT
Manufacturing of aluminum clad steel
2 | Metal Form WLL Bahrain Bahrain 100 wire, core / alloy wire with capacity of
5,000 MT.
Bahrain Welding Wire & . , Manufacturing of aluminum rods with
3 Product Bahrain Bahrain 70 capacity of 32,000 MT.
. . Manufacturing of aluminum Rods and
4 '\A/“Sal Kablo San. ve Tic. Turkey Turkey 100 conductors with production capacity of
) 35,000 & 20,000 respectively
Manufacturing of aluminum Rods &
5 Midal Cables International Australia Australia 90 aluminum conductor with production
Pty Ltd capacity of 50,000 & 10,000 respec-
tively
. . . . Saudi Manufacturing of Aluminum Conduc-
6 | Midal Cable Saudi Saudi Arabia Arabia 100 tors with capacity of 24,000 MT.
Manufacturing of aluminum Rods &
7 Midal Cables International Mozambique Mozam- 100 aluminum conductor with production
Limitada a bique capacity of 50,000 & 20,000 respec-
tively

XECA International Information Technology
The Company currently owns 25% of XECA. XECA is engaged in the supporting of Information Systems and

Network Services. It is providing this service to many companies, including SCC.

11 - TRANSPARENCY AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

11A - THE SCC BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The major functions and responsibilities of the Board of Directors are:
a. Approving the strategic plans and main objectives of the company and supervising their implementation;
b. Laying down rules for internal control systems and supervising them;

c. Drafting a corporate governance code for the company which does not contradict the provisions of the
CMA regulations, supervising and monitoring in general, the effectiveness of the code and amending it
whenever necessary.

d. Laying down specific and explicit policies, standards and procedures, for the membership of the Board
of Directors and implementing them after approval of these by the General Assembly.

e. Without prejudice to the competencies of the General Assembly, the Board shall assume all the neces-
sary powers for the company’s management the ultimate responsibility for the company rests with the
Board even if it sets up committees or delegates some of its powers to a third party.

The Board of Directors comprises of 7 members elected for a three-year term commencing 3rd September 2014.
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10 - SUBSIDIARIES & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

. Capital as
% of Capital held :
- - . - Country of . . per Nominal
Subsidiaries Principal Field of Activities . Directly or Indi- .
Incorporation Share Value in
rectly -
SR Million
Domestic
Saudi Cable Company for Marketing Purchase and sale of
Limited electrical cables and related Saudi Arabia 100% 10.0
products
Mass Projects for Power and Telecommu- | Turnkey power and . )
o o o . Saudi Arabia 100% 10.0
nications Limited | telecommunication projects
Mass Centers for Distribution of Electrical | Electrical & telecommunication . )
o o ) Saudi Arabia 100% 445
Products Limited distribution services
International
Mass Kablo Yatirim Ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi
. . P . Turkey 100%
(Previously Mass Holding Anonim Sirketi) Holding Company
Demirer Kablo Tesisleri Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anonim | Manufacture, supply 350.3
Sirketi and trading of electrical Turkey 100%
cables
Mass International Trading Company Limited .
International trade Ireland 100% 0.6
(dormant)
Saudi Cable Company (U.A.E) L.L.C. Sale of cables and United Arab 1009, 10
related products Emirates ° '
Manufacturer of
. . Switch Gears,
Elimsan Group of Companies Turkey 94.4% 216.9
Transformers and
related accessories

Capital as per
Nominal Share
Value in SR Million

Principal Field of Country of % of Owner-

e Sk Activities Incorporation ship

Conductors, Rods &
Midal Cables W.L.L. Bahrain 50% 124.3
related products

Implementation of
) ) Information . .
XECA International Information Technology Saudi Arabia 25% 13.2
Systems and

Network Services

Midal Cables W.L.L.

The Company owns 50% of Midal Cables Limited. — Bahrain, which is engaged in the manufacture and supply
of Aluminum alloy rods, wires and conductors and related products. The facilities are located adjacent to the

Alba Smelter in Bahrain. The capacity for Aluminum rod production at the year-end 2015 was 263,530 MT.
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2 : Original Addition/ o
Financing Balance YTD Paid in Balance
Company Bank Name Loan Date Period Loan 2014 Transfer 2015 YTD 2015
Amount from TL
(SR’000)

;12014 11 Months 8,606 8,606 - (8,606) -
YAPIKREDI 2015 1 Year 1,470 - 1,467 (107) 1,360
; 2013 11,505 11,505 - (11,505) -
ISBANKASE | 5515 1 Year 1,066 - 1,066 (144) 1,822

: 2014 8 Months 3,341 3,341 - (3,341) -

$8\R/EYT 2014 6 Months 4,028 4,028 - (4,028) -

2015 1 Year 1,039 - 1,039 (44) 995

3 2013 9 Months 2,486 2,481 - (2,481) -
ELIMSAN T-BANK 2015 1 Year 2,278 2,278 (1,036) 1242

2014 6 Months 5,502 5,502 - (5,502) -

BANK ASYA | 2014 9 Months 2,678 2,678 - (2,678) -
2015 9 Months 10,260 - 10,260 (2,820) 7,440

; 2013 5 Months 10,061 10,061 - (10,061) -
DENIZBANK 2015 1 Year 1,132 - 1,132 - 1,132

2013 7 Months 7,500 7,500 - (7,500) -
VAKIFBANK 2015 1 Year 1,125 - 1,125 - 1,125

TOTAL ELIMSAN

TOTAL SHORT TERM LOANS AS OF 31-DEC-2015
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Financing ] Balance o Balance
Company Bank Name Loan Date Period Loan YTD 2014 Transfer YTD 2015
Amount from TL
(SR’000)
SHORT TERM LOANS
Al-Rajhi 05-Jul-12 | 1 Year 149,804 | 92,142 - - 92,142
Musharaka
01-Aug-13 | 1 Year 114,644 46,681 - (46,681) -
Bank AlBilad | o5 0ct-13 | 1 Year 33,405 31,914 - (483) 31,431
Saudi Cable 12-Sep-1 3 1 Year 25,094 19,103 - (1 9,1 03) -
Company
Bank Al-Jazira | 31-Dec-13 | 1 Year 90,344 77,864 18 (1,691) 76,191
BNP 15-Aug-12 | 9 Months 69,603 69,880 628 (319) 70,189
NCB 02-Mar-13 | 2 Months 234,644 220,442 - (2,300) 218,142
SABB 27-Nov-14 | 2 Months 15,233 15,233 26,018 - 41,251
TOTAL SAUDI CABLE COMPANY 732,861 573,259 (70,577) 529,346
26-Sep-12 | 2 Years 159,988 45,497 - - 45,497
Mass Projects | Al-Rajhi
2014 1 Year 45,000 27,250 - - 27,250
TOTAL MASS PROJECTS 204,988
2014 1 Year 75,731 11,981 - (11,981) -
AK BANK 2012 5 Years 56,250 - 11,250 11,250
ALBARAKA 2014 6 Months 27,953 8,831 - -
TURK 2015 6 Months 15,673 - 15,673 (6,210) 9,464
2013 2 Years 10,500 12,938 - (12,938) -
Eﬂ:giﬁNK/ 2015 1.5 Years 12,825 - 12,825 (8,410) 4,415
2015 8 Months 1,806 - 1,806 - 1,806
2013 6 Months 48,675 14,813 - (14,813) -
FIBABANK | 5515 6Months | 12,000 - 12,000 12,000
GARANTI
Mass Kablo BANKASI 2014 1 Year 5,063 5,063 - (5,063) -
2014 6 Months 7,500 3,750 - (3,750) -
2015 6 Months 4,688 - 4,688 - 4,688
ODEABANK 2013 2 Years 26,719 3,281 - (3,281) -
2014 1 Year 2,813 2,813 - (2,813) -
2014 6 Months 15,469 8,918 - (8,918) -
SEKERBANK | 2014 3 Months 13,594 2,344 - (2,344) -
2014 1 Year 20,738 14,498 - (14,498) -
2015 6 Months 14,250 - 14,250 (6,515) 7,735
;X:\IIIEI.EIAR 2014 1 Year 9,375 9,375 - - 9,375
2014 1.5 Years 9,375 - 9,375 - 9,375
2014 - 43,125 42,905 5,625 (48,530) -
ZIRAATBANK | 2014 1.5 Years 13,125 - 13,125 - 13,125
2015 1 Year 41,625 - 41,828 - 41,828

TOTAL MASS KABLO

488,869

141,508

142,445

(158,892)

125,060
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9 - BANK LOANS

Term Loans of the Company at 31 December 2015 were:

Original Addition/

Financing Balance o Balance
Company Bank Name Loan Date Period Loan YTD 2014 Transfer Paid in 2015 YTD 2015
Amount from TL
(SR’000)
TERM LOANS
ga“d' Cable | gnr 8-Mar-12 | 6 Years 191,460 125,560 - (12,600) 112,960
ompany
TOTAL TERM LOANS (A) 191,460 125,560 (12,600) 112,960
COMMERCIAL BANK
19-Oct-09 6 Years 31,578 26,748 - - 26,748
03-Nov-09 6 Years 36,375 31,596 - - 31,596
AL-RAJHI
Saudi Cable 21-Dec-09 6 Years 18,193 15,791 - - 15,791
Company TOTAL 86,146 74,135 - - 74,135
BNP 24-Sep-12 4 Years 30.000 7,610 - - 7,610
PARIBAS | rotaL 116,146 81,745 - - 81,745
Mass
Proi AL-RAJHI 26-Sep-12 2 Years 159,988 95,464 - - 95,464
rojects
AK BANK 27-Dec-12 5 Years 56,250 39,375 (11,250) (16,874) 11,251
1 Year
ZIRAATBANK | 24-Oct-14 4 Months 5,625 5,625 (5,625) -
ZIRAAT-
BANK 12-Jan-15 5 Years 3,750 3,750 3,750
T.VAKIFLAR
Mass Kablo | BANKASI 3-Dec-14 1 Year 9,375 9,375 (9,375) -
ZIRAAT- 1 Year
BANK 12-Nov-14 4 Months 7,500 7,500 (7,500) -
TTGV 6,281 246 - (246) -
EXIMBANK | 7-Apr-15 5 Years 6,825 6,825 6,825
TOTAL 95,606 62,121 (23,175) (17,120) 21,826
YAPI KREDI | 2015 5 Years 7,136 - 7,136 - 7,136
ISBANKASI | 2015 5 Years 9,540 - 9,540 - 9,540
KUVEYT-
TURK 2015 5 Years 6,551 - 6,551 - 6,551
ELIMSAN  T'rgank | 2015 2 Years 208 : 208 : 208
DENIZBANK | 2015 5 Years 8,929 - 8,929 - 8,929
VAKIFBANK | 2015 5 Years 6,375 - 6,375 - 6,375
TOTAL 38,739 - 38,739 - 38,739
TOTAL COMMERCIAL BANK (B) 410,479 239,330 15,564 (17,120) 237,774
TOTAL LONG TERM LOAN (A+B) 601,939 364,890 15,564 (29,720) 350,734
SIDF (27,400) - - (27,400)
LESS: Commercial
Current (177,209) - - (177,209)
L Banks
Position
Total Current Portion Term Loan (204,609) - - (204,609)

TOTAL LONG TERM LOANS AS OF 31-DEC-2015 160,281 (29,720) 146,125
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8 - ZAKAT & INCOME TAX

The Department of Zakat and Income Tax (DZIT) has assessed additional Zakat liability amounting to SR 50.7
million on the Company for the years 1993 to 2004. The company objected to part of the additional liabilities,

which is still under an appeal with the DZIT and Board of Grievances (BOG).

DZIT issued an assessment for the years 2005 to 2007 and claimed additional zakat and withholding tax
liability of SR 35.6 million. The Company objected to this assessment, which was transferred to Preliminary
Objection Committee (PAC) for their review and decision. PAC approved DZIT’s point of view. Accordingly, the
company then filed an appeal against PAC’s decision with Higher Appeal Committee (HAC) which is currently
under review by the HAC. HAC might reject the appeal since the company did not submit the required bank
guarantee of SR 33 million along with the appeal. However, the HAC might accept the said appeal if the com-

pany will manage to file the bank guarantee before the hearing.

The DZIT has also raised assessment for the years 2008 and 2009 with additional liability of SR 32.9 million.
The company has filed an appeal against the DZIT’s assessment with the Preliminary Appeal Committee

(PAC).

The DZIT issued another assessment for the years starting from 2010 to 2012 and claimed additional Zakat
liability of SR 72.2 million. The company also objected to this assessment, which is still under review by the

DZIT until date.

The company booked a provision of SR 79 million against the above mentioned assessments by the DZIT. The

company filed its Zakat returns for the year 2013 and 2014 and has obtained the restricted Zakat certificates.
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SAUDI CABLE COMPANY

7 - CONVERGENCE TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)

Introduction

In line with the current developments in financial reporting on a global spectrum, the Saudi Organization for
Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA) in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia approved the project of convergence to
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). IFRS in KSA will be similar to the standards issued by

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), taking into consideration local laws and regulations.

The plan

Earliest date of application for listed entities is set at financial periods starting on or after 01 January 2017,

with comparative financial statements for a period of two years starting 01 January 2016 (as illustrated below):

Date of transition Comparative information Reporting date

01 January 2016 31 December 2016 31 December 2017

Accordingly, quarterly reporting during first quarter 2017 will be published along with the auditors review re-

port, which will be compliant with IFRS in KSA with the similar comparative periods starting 01 January 2016.

In preparation, the Group has designed a comprehensive plan to converge its systems and reporting struc-
ture in line with the newly applicable reporting framework, in which the Group, with assistance of an external

consultant, will:

. Perform SOCPA / IFRS diagnostic review and assess the impact of convergence on the reporting

function
. Assess the impact on business processes across the Group

. Implement the IFRS in KSA as prescribed and in conformance with the prevailing jurisdiction

Preparation

As of 2015, the only components of the Group who are yet to implement IFRS in KSA are the Parent Company

and one of its fully owned subsidiaries. The other subsidiaries are already IFRS compliant.

The Board of Directors, along with management, are confident that company, and its subsidiaries, will be

IFRS compliant by the time stipulated and are taking all the steps possible to ensure a smooth transition.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
THE SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

(IN SR’000)
As at 31 December
DESCRIPTION 2015 2014
Capital Stock 760,000 760,000 -
Statutory Reserves 63,432 63,432 -
Accumulated (Loss)/Profit (365,644) (367,331) 1.687
Proposed dividends - - -
Cumulative changes in fair values (13,694) (20,123) 6.429
Foreign currency translation reserve (9,143) (6,234) (2.909)
Total Shareholders’ Equity 434,951 429,744 5.207
Minority Interest 6,154 7,415 (1.257)
Total Equity 441,105 437,159 3.950

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
ZAKAT AND OTHER AMOUNTS PAID TO GOVERNMENT

(IN SR’000)
As at 31 December Net
DESCRIPTION 2015 2014 Change
Zakat 544 407 137
The Public Authority for Social Insurance 7,413 8,190 (777)
Registration, Visa and Other Expenses 794 2,490 (1,696)
Total amounts paid to the Government 8,751 11,087 (2,336)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Profit and Loss Summary (2 Years)

(In SR’000)
Increase /
DESCRIPTION 2015 2014 (Decrease)

Amount Amount Amount
Gross Sales 1,827,034 95.3 1,563,179 91.1 263,855
Contract revenue 91,025 4.7 153,142 8.9 (62,117)
Total Sales 1,918,059 100.0 1,716,321 100.0 201,738
Cost of Sales (1,766,995) | (92.1) (1,567,793) | (91.3) 199,202
Contracts Cost (82,659) (4.3) (141,865) (8.3) (59,206)
Selling & Distribution Expenses (55,859) (2.9) (84,058) (4.9) (28,199)
General & Administrative Expenses | (95,611) (5.0) (103,635) (6.0) (8,024)
Amortization of Deferred Cost (19,009) (1.0) (16,485) (1.0) 2,524
Financial Charges (21,733) (1.1) (112,039) (6.5) (90,306)
Provision for Doubtful Debts 39,902 2.1 (3,970) (0.2) (43,872)
Total Expenses (2,001,964) | (104.4) | (2,029,845) | (118.3) | (27,881)
Other Income / (Loss) 6,749 0.4 9,783 0.6 (3,034)
I(:Loorzg?P%;irtrency re-measurement 8.127 0.4 (473) (0.0) 8.600
Ay S G 83,763 4.4 114,540 6.7 (30,777)
Impairment of Goodwill - - (12,342) (0.7) 12,342
Derivative Financial Instruments - - 11,715 0.7 (11,715)
fotal Other Income & Share of | gg,639 5.1 123,223 7.2 (24,584)
zrl‘,\?ggnzéLfAsxs) BEFORE ZAKAT | 1 734 0.8 (190,301) | (11.1) | 205,035
Zakat and Income Tax (13,900) (0.7) (13,535) (0.8) 365
:IITNO ggﬁb?ﬁf&:gg.? RE 834 0.0 (203,836) (11.9) 204,670
Minority Interest 853 0.0 2,157 0.1 (1,304)
NET PROFIT / (LOSS) 1,687 0.1 (201,679) (11.8) 203,366
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Revenue (SR’000)
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Total Shareholder’s Equity & Total Liabilities(SR’000)

4,500,000
4,000,000
3,500,000
3,000,000
2,500,000
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000

500,000

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

Year ended 31 December

i

DESCRIPTION (SR'000)
2012 2013 2014

Revenue 3199565 | 2,687,850 |2478444 |1716321 | 1,918,059
Costs and Expenses (3,291,096) | (2,944,554) | (2,810,080) | (2,019,005) | (1,986,235)
(Net Profit/(Loss (91,531) | (256,704) | (331,636) | (302,684) | (68,176)
Equity Share of Rrofit from 96,272 104,610 | 131,858 114540 | 83763
Associates
Net Profit/(Loss) before Zakat 4,741 (152,094) (199,778) (188,144) 15,587
Zakat & Income Tax 362 (4,311) (29,339) | (13,535) | (13,900)
(Net Profit/(Loss 5,103 (156,405) | (229,117) | (201,679) | 1,687
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6 - GROUP FINANCIALS

Summary of Financial Position (5 Years)

As of 31 December

Description (SR’000)
2013

Current Assets 2,786,207 2,369,208 1,704,208 1,116,440 1,222,560
Non - Current Assets 1,320,855 1,404,885 1,520,794 | 1,539,353 1,410,334
Total Assets 4,107,062 3,774,093 3,225,002 2,655,793 2,632,894
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Current liabilities 2,619,001 2,256,645 2,181,711 1,961,520 1,928,693
Non - Current liabilities 466,660 589,081 365,141 257,114 263,096
Total Liabilities 3,085,661 2,845,726 2,546,852 2,218,634 2,191,789
Shareholders’ Equity 1,009,093 915,084 673,681 429,744 434,951
Minority Interest 12,308 13,283 4,469 7,415 6,154
:gtlg'e'r';az';';':; and Share- 4,107,062 3,774,003 3,225,002 2,655,793 2,632,894

Total Assets (SR’000)

5,000,000

4,000,000

3,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
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ELIMSAN (SWITCHGEAR)

The initiatives and targets that were set in 2014 for turning around the negative results into profitability within 3
years, started to yield. In 2015, substantial orders from Qatar with high margins entered starting from August,
2015. These orders both from Electrical Utility and Private Customers thanks to the long-lasted successful ap-
proval procedure will play a significant role in Elimsan’s sales revenues for minimum 5 years to come. Elimsan
has become the market leader in this lucrative market and is committed to stay this way. Additional profitable
export orders also from Kazakhstan and the UK show the successful yield of Elimsan’s export initiatives.

All the above with increasing its market share in the domestic market with all the products in its product-port-
folio, Elimsan is becoming the market leader not only in Turkey but also in a wide geography including GCC,
CIS and Turkey. Trusting the growth in sales and general positive trend in energy business worldwide, Elimsan
continuously invests in product developments, which include not only the existing products but also totally
new products for enabling penetration into new and challenging markets including Europe and South Africa.
Successful product launches with type-tests from worldwide recognized accredited laboratories are enabled
within a Total Quality concept. Slowy but surely, Elimsan is getting ready to face competition with its rivals and
even surpass them.

Liquidity issues are taken care of very intensively and restructuring with the banks are signed within 2015.
Further actions and initiatives are undertaken for getting access to additional cash assets. Thanks to a strong
immovable asset portfolio, Elimsan has minimized its risks for cash management. Cash is used rigorously for
new investments and all precautions are undertaken for enabling further healthy growth. Elimsan managed the
positive change and commenced to become a profitable global industrial player in 2016 and beyond thanks to
innovative products and a healthy and strong backlog from domestic and foreign customers.
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5 - TURKISH OPERATIONS

MASS KABLO

During the period, the Group introduced a process of organizational change, which has involved redefining
its product composition and commercial segmentation encompassing the development and introduction of
its own brand of accessories as well as product range customization, such as aluminum metallic shields, on
its High and Extra High cable range, thus offering a complete and innovative product portfolio designed to
satisfy the diverse and specific application needs of the market. The aim is clearly to provide commercial
focus to target markets for high-tech and high value-added businesses whose focus is on underground net-
works and complement client base resources on their execution

2015 performance by Mass Kablo High Voltage business largely mirrored the same period of 2014. Although
High Voltage commercial performance was positive domestically and in selective neighboring markets, it re-
mained weak in some of our major export markets adversely affected by regional geopolitical developments
(Syria, Russia, Irag). During the 4" Quarter, the company has redoubled its efforts to service the growing
demand for energy infrastructure in the Middle East market, winning some orders; however these markets are
also characterized by lower profitability.
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Support to social organizations in carrying out their role

. The company provides annual support to 15 Charitable Societies for Memorization of Quran in various

regions of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

*  The company also supports various Charitable Organizations by making donation in kind from time to

time

*  The company participates in the training of young Saudi men and women with the cooperation of Minis-

try of Labor’s Human Resources Development Fund
Programs for continuous contact with the Employees “ Hosting Parties”

The company always endeavors to consolidate the relationship among the employees through hosting par-
ties. Accordingly, in Ramadan 1436H, the company organized a party for all employees at its headquarters

for breaking the fast.
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Human Resources

With the belief of the company’s Management that the human element is the prime ingredient for success
of an enterprise, the company has developed a new Organization Structure including changes to functional
regulation and salary scale.

The company’s Management has followed the latest scientific methods for job evaluation and estimation of
functional depth for all positions. This has enabled the company to systematize salary administration and
keep up with a market approach to the labor market in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, thereby providing an
encouraging work environment and greater job stability to all employees of the company. We believe this will
have a beneficial effect on the company’s results in the future.

Program to employ recent young graduates

Proceeding from the company’s approach to maintain its leading role in the Saudization of jobs in 2015, the
company employed an additional 50 recent graduates and enrolled them into a training program in cooper-
ation with the Ministry of Labor through the Human Resources Development Fund.

This program aims at preparing the youth and imparting to them the required basic skills so that they are
adequately prepared to add value in their new positions at the company. We believe this will also reflect
positively on the company’s performance.

Programs created for welfare of Employees

The company supports the welfare of its employees by providing educational assistance to the children of its
employees. This program was made available to all employees of the company in 2015.

Manpower

NITAQAT
Rating

Sector / Company Total Employees Nationalization%

Total Workforce in the Kingdom 1,028

Total Workforce outside the Kingdom 805

Total workforce 1,833

Social Responsibility and Sustainability Programs

The company encourages its employees to get involved in helping the local community through a range of
activities, including charitable establishments and other similar institutions and by devoting a part of their
time for that purpose. The company seeks to build constructive relations with several institutions for building
a better society and a better environment that is economically sustainable.
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4 - ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The company realizes that a strong cultural foundation is the cornerstone of its short and long-term strategies
in building a high performance organization. Our Journey to Excellence, specifies three guiding principles:

people-centric, results-driven, and forward-looking:

People-centric — To become an accessible and responsive organization, the company needed to expand
and enhance its connections with customers and suppliers, emphasizing commitment and transparency, and

engage with its own employees’ development for leadership, ownership and accountability

Results-driven — The provision of excellent results necessitated emphasis on accurate data collection, indi-
vidual performance measures, key performance indicators, and team performance monitoring. Everyone is
to be held accountable for results that matter to the company. Additionally, building cost-consciousness in all

conduct and staying within the budget are also key aspects of our results-driven culture.

Forward-looking — Investment in SCC facilities, technology, systems, programs, and business processes

that need to be conducted to establish value added processes.

At the company, We value a High Performance Culture and sense of ownership among our team. We live
by our “ICARE” value system, Occupational Health & Safety and compliance with legislations and codes of
ethics. A high performance culture is about diversity, teamwork and leadership. It is how we build trust, focus

on customers and drive changes through creativity and innovation.

We are certain that a cohesive culture based on our “ICARE” values strengthens our business and makes
the SCC group a more attractive employer, business partner, industry leader, and trusted corporate citizen.

“ICARE” stands for:

Innovation Creative thinking that adds value

Commitment Transform promise to reality, as one team
Appreciation Recognize the achievements of others

Respect Showing admiration and consideration to everyone
Excellence Deliver outstanding results
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3 - REVENUES

The Group’s revenues in 2015 were SR 1,918 million as compared to SR 1,716 million in 2014.

The Group’s consolidated revenues include sales from its Turkish and UAE subsidiaries, but do not include the
revenues of Midal Cables, which is 50% owned by SCC. Midal Cables recorded revenue of SR 3,598 million
in 2015.

The Geographical distribution of the revenues was:

SR Million
2015 2014
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (KSA) & GCC 1,410 1,175
Rest of the World 508 541
TOTAL SALES 1,918 1,716

The Geographical distribution of the net Income/(Loss) was:

SR Million
2015 2014
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (KSA) & GCC 26 (124)
Rest of the World (24) (77)
(TOTAL NETINCOME/(LOSS 2 (201)

Revenue was generated from the following segments:

Revenue From

As at 31 December

Product Sales 1,827 1,563 264
Projects & Contracting 91 153 (62)
TOTAL REVENUE 1,918 1,716 202
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SAUDI CABLE COMPANY

(A Joint Stock Company)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

1 - INTRODUCTION

Saudi Cable Company (SCC) is a joint stock company with ownership in several manufacturing facilities in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (KSA), Kingdom of Bahrain and Turkey. These companies are engaged in the
Manufacture, Supply, Installation, Testing & Commissioning and Maintenance of Power Cable, ranging from
Extra High Voltage, Medium Voltage, Low Voltage, Building Wires, Telecommunication Cables, Instrumen-
tation, Specialty Control Cables, Electrical Sub-Stations, Switch Gears, Electrical Cables Accessories and
Transformers.

Additionally, SCC Group has a network of distribution for the supply of all types of cables and associated elec-
trical products from several of its Warehouses. It also supports its customers through a total solution for the
Supply, Installation, Testing & Commissioning and Maintenance of Electrical Systems with the state-of-the-art
Digital and Information Technology System.

2 - SALIENT ACTIVITIES

Profit & Loss And Financial Restructuring

The Group has achieved a net profit of SR 1.7 million as compared to the loss of SR 201.7 million last year,
mainly due to significant improvement in main operations. Both the revenue and margins have improved. Also
the Group has recovered significant amount of old outstanding receivables during the year, accordingly provi-
sion held against were reversed. This result was achieved despite the fact that inadequate funding facilities
available during the year.

Financial Restructuring

SCC KSA operations finalized a debt-restructuring agreement with its 4 main bankers, on 23 February 2016.
This agreement allows the company to reschedule and amortize its debt over a period of 7 years, culminating
with a final payment at the end of December 2022.

The broad terms of the restructuring include a rights issue to be carried out by the Company within the next 2
years, proceeds of which will primarily be used finance working capital, thereby further fuelling growth.

Profit Distribution & Dividend

During 2015, the company did not disburse any dividends, similar to 2014.
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Custodian of the two Holy Mosques
King Salman Bin Abdul Aziz Al-Saud

His Royal Highness Crown Prince His Royal Highness Crown Prince
Mohammad bin Naif bin Abdullaziz Al-Saud Mohammad bin Salman bin
Deputy Prime Minister, Minister of Interior Abdullaziz Al-Saud

Deputy Crown Prince, Minister of Defence
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